
I-485 EXPRESS LANES ROADSIDE TOLL 
COLLECTION SYSTEM REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Addendum No. 1 
Issued October 9, 2020 

This is an addendum to the I-485 Express Lanes Roadside Toll Collection System Request for Proposals 
(RFP) offered by the North Carolina Turnpike Authority. The Table of Contents and page numbering have 
been updated for ease of reference.  
 
Prospective Respondents: You are hereby notified of the following information in regard to 
the referenced RFP: 

 Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 

 Section B – Official revisions to the I-485 Express Lanes Roadside Toll Collection System RFP 
 
All other terms, conditions and requirements of the original RFP dated August 20, 2020 remain unchanged 
unless modified by this addendum.  
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Following are the answers to questions submitted in response to the above referenced RFP from September 26, 2020 - September 29, 2020. All 
of the questions have been listed in the order received by the North Carolina Turnpike Authority (NCTA).  
 

# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 

47.  
Part III, Page 

49 of 112 Section 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Please provide the estimated Average 
Daily Traffic for the express lanes’ sites 
and adjacent general purpose lanes 
covered under this contract.    

Based on the current Traffic 
and Revenue estimates, the 
2025 AADT for the Express 
Lanes is 33,937 vehicles and 
the AADT for the general 
purpose lanes in tolling 
corridor is 134,199 vehicles.   
The traffic and revenue 
estimates assume that 
annualized volumes are based 
on 265 days for Express Lanes 
and 335 days for General 
Purposes Lanes. 

48.  

RTCS485_Pro
poser 

Questions & 
NCTA 

Responses_Set 
1 

Question 10 
Liquidated Damages 

 

With NCTA’s answer, can NCTA confirm 
that the subsections in 1.3 other than 
1.3.1 are covered by the Part IV 3.7.14.2, 
which says: “The Contractor’s liability for 
damages to NCTA for any cause 
whatsoever, and regardless of the form of 
action, whether in contract or in tort, 
shall be limited to two times the value of 
the Contract.” 

Sub-section 1.3 and 1.3.1 are 
covered by the Part IV 
3.7.14.2. 

49.  
Part I, Page 19 

(26 of pdf) Section 3.2, Table 1-3 Page Limitations 

Page Limitations indicates a 20 page limit 
for Sections 1-5 and a 50-page limit for 
Section 6. Sections 1-5 include by far the 
majority of the technical proposal, 
including detailed explanations of company 
qualifications, team qualifications, our 
approach to meeting the technical 
requirements, project plan and 

No change. The Proposers 
shall cover Sections 1 and 2 in 
3 pages or less, the answers 
to Sections 3 – 5 should be 
covered within 17 pages. 
Proposers should ensure that 
only the important aspects of 
their responses are 
highlighted and that spaces 
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implementation, and our approach to 
operations and maintenance. Considering 
Section 3 alone includes 18 sub-headings 
of questions, it does not seem possible 
that proposers could fit all answers to 
sections 1-5 within 20 pages. Would 
NCTA allow 40 pages or more for our 
responses to Sections 1-5?   

are used efficiently with 
diagrams and short 
descriptions when possible.  
 
Please refer to response in 
Question 75 about exclusions 
for Use Cases. 

50.  
Part III, Page 

50 of 112 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Item 270: This section is specific to rear 
license plates. Does this include trailer 
license plates on articulating commercial 
trucks which are different than the license 
plate mounted on the front of the tractor 
portion of a commercial vehicle? 

The Express Lanes are 
designed primarily for 
passenger vehicles. However, 
if a passenger vehicle has a 
trailer attached, the RTCS 
shall be capable of capturing 
all rear plates visible. The 
selection of the appropriate 
rear plate will be handled 
based on pre-established 
business rules.  

The Vendor is responsible to 
provide the Fully formed 
Transaction. NCTA will 
handle billing. Proposers are 
encouraged to provide 
innovative solutions as 
required. 

51.  
Part III, Page 

97 of 112 7.1.1 Performance Measurement 
Table II, Item 9: Is the “accuracy rate of 
99.80%” inclusive of ALPR and manual 
review? 

Yes, this is inclusive of ALPR 
and manual review. 
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52.  
Part III, Page 

97 of 112 7.1.1 Performance Measurement 
Table II, Item 9: Is the accuracy rate based 
on a percentage of traffic or all traffic? Are 
there any exclusions?  

The accuracy is based on all 
image transactions processed 
and sent to the CBOS. It 
excludes all image 
transactions rejected.  

53.  
Part III, Page 

39 of 112 
Section 4.1.5 

RSS Installations 
Requirements 

#197(u) - Please confirm the Contractor’s 
responsibility related to the TSI HOV 
indicator beacons. Are the TSI HOV 
indicator beacons provided by the 
Constructor? If not, who are they 
provided by? Please provide any additional 
information, such as interface 
requirements. 

The Contractor is responsible 
for procuring and integrating 
the TSI HOV Indicated 
beacons.   

54.  
Part III, Page 

41 of 112 
Section 4.1.6 

Operational Back Office 
(OBO) Provisioning 

Requirements 

#203 – Please clarify what is meant by the 
example provided in requirement #203 
stating that a "journeyman electricians 
shall terminate all cables, wiring, or fiber 
optic cables." We interpret this to mean 
high voltage cables or hazardous locations 
would require journeyman electricians for 
terminations in accordance with NEC. 
Please confirm. 

All work shall be performed 
by qualified personnel and 
follow all applicable standards 
including NEC guidelines. 

55.  SD-05, SD-06 N/A N/A 

Please confirm that conduits, transition 
box and cable trays shown on these 
drawings are being provided by the 
Constructor. 

Yes, conduits, transition box 
and cable trays shown on 
these drawings are being 
provided by the Constructor. 

56.  

Attachment 1: 
COVID-19 
Workforce 
Safety Plan 

N/A N/A 

During installation does the toll site fall 
under safety requirements of the 
Contractor with respect to policies 
around social distancing, face coverings, 
and similar rules not otherwise 
covered by state guidelines? 

 

Yes, the Contractor is 
responsible for following all 
policies including social 
distancing and the use of face 
coverings. 
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57.  
Part III, Page 
108 of 112 Section 7.6 

Maintenance Priorities, 
Response and Repair Times 

Please confirm that response and repair 
time requirements are linked to Level III 
maintenance activities. 

Yes, response and repair time 
requirements are linked to 
Level III Maintenance 
activities. 

58.  
Part IV, Page 

14 of 40 Section 1.7.3.5 Release of Escrow Deposits 

Please confirm that the license rights 
specified in this section to reverse 
engineer does not apply to 3rd party 
software licensed by the Contractor or to 
software delivered pursuant to the 
Contract that the Contractor deems 
commercial and that has not been 
developed or modified for use in the 
system. 

The provision applies to all 
Software directly owned by 
the Contractor used on the 
project. 

59.  
Part IV, Page 

36 of 40 Section 3.7.14.2 
Limitation of Contractor’s 

Liability 

Please clarify and confirm that the liability 
cap is for all causes, rather than any 
individual causes.  As such, the cap of two 
times the contract value is for the 
aggregate liability for all damages. 

Confirmed, the liability cap is 
for all causes. 

60.  
Forms D-3, 

and D-4 N/A N/A 

Is it more accurate to complete a D-4 
Referece Form for each entry within the 
D-3 Recent Client List? Or is it more 
accurate to complete a D-4 Reference 
Form with a subset of the 
Clients/Programs from the D-3 Recent 
Client List (i.e. Section (a) is one 
Client/Program and Section (b) is another 
Client/Program) to specifically address the 
Proposer's qualifications and experience 
request in section I.3.2.C.2? 

Either approach is compliant. 
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61.  N/A N/A N/A 

Please provide clarification on the 
complete scope of the customer furnished 
reader equipment such as a bill of 
materials inclusive of any cabinets, power 
or environmental provisions. 

NCTA will provide AVI 
readers and antennas and AVI 
cabinet. The Contractor is 
responsible for all cables, 
connectors and to provision 
the equipment provided by 
NCTA. 

62.  
Part III, Page 

70 of 112 Section 5.4.1 Data Summarization 
Where would the customer prefer that 
Attachment 6: Data Dictionary be 
submitted in the Proposal submittal? 

Attachment 6 shall be 
included in the Technical 
Proposal as an Appendix. It 
shall not count towards the 
page count in the Technical 
Proposal. 

63.  
Part I, Page 12 

of 40 Section 1.26.4 
Listing of Subconsultants or 

Subcontractors 

Section 1.26.4 states that "A 
Subconsultant or Subcontractor Form 
RS-2 is required for all Subconsultants 
or Subcontractors whether or not they 
are considered a SPSF entity." 
However, Form RS-2 is entitled 
"Subconsultant, To Be Used With 
Professional Services Contract Only." 
Please clarify intent of form as the I-485 
Express Lanes is not a Professional 
Services Contract. 
 

 

There are elements of work 
within the Scope of Work and 
Requirements that may 
require the use of 
professional services. If 
determined appropriate by 
Proposer, the RS-2 form 
should be submitted as 
requested. 

64.  
Part I, Page 35 

of 40 Section 5 
Procurement Evaluation 

Process 

As the automation rate is Contractor 
defined while providing image verification 
services is optional, How does NCTA 
intend to evaluate a potentially higher cost 
of proposals that include image verification 
services against a potentially lower cost 
proposal with a lower automation rate 

NCTA is evaluating best value 
in its proposal. NCTA will 
consider compliance with 
technical requirements 
including automation. 
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that does not include image verification 
services?” 

65.  Page 19 of 40 
RFP Part I, Section 3.2 
Content of Technical 

Proposal 

Table 1-3: Proposal Page 
Limitations 

Please confirm that in addition to the table 
of contents, that the front cover and the 
vendor’s title page exist outside of the 
page limitation? 

Yes, the front cover and the 
Vendor’s title page exist 
outside of the page limitation. 

66.  19 of 40 

RFP Part I, Section 3.2 
Content of Technical 

Proposal 

and Q&A Question #8 

Table 1-3: Proposal Page 
Limitations; Section 6 

The RFP states: “The Proposer shall 
describe how it will meet the Scope of 
Work and Requirements using the first 
section level sub header (e.g. 6.1). for Part 
III Scope of Work, Sections 3-8.” 

Would NCTA confirm that vendors are 
to respond to SOW sections 2-7 – Q&A 
mentioned sections 3-7? Please confirm 
the section numbers that vendors are to 
respond to.  

Additionally, the Q&A calls for an 
addendum with these adjustments. When 
will this document be released? 

The Section numbers apply to 
the Sections defined in Part I, 
Section 3.0 Content of 
Proposal. No change. 

An Addendum will be 
released by October 9th. 

67.  24 of 40 RFP Part I, Section 3.2.E  
Proposal Section 3: 

Approach to Scope of 
Work and Requirements 

The RFP states, “Provide drawings 
identifying where the equipment will be 
located on the Project including through 
the Toll Zone, and Toll Rate Sign (TRS). In 
addition, wherever possible, provide 
supporting drawings to explain the 
equipment layouts and any additional 
MVD sensor spacing using the 
Attachments provided in Part III, Scope of 
Work and Requirements.” 

The Proposer may include 
drawings as noted in Section 
3.2.E, Requirement 2 only 
may be included as Appendix 
and not count towards the 
page count. An Addendum 
will be issued. 
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Section 3 is included in the 20-page limit 
that is given for sections 1-5. Since 
vendors are required to provide drawings 
in addition to answering a significant 
number of requirements, would NCTA 
please allot more pages for these sections 
or allow vendors to include drawings as an 
appendix?   

68.  33 of 40 
RFP Part I, Section 4.1 

Submission of Technical 
Proposal 

1. Form of Technical 
Proposal 

The RFP states, “The electronic copy shall 
be provided in a searchable (NOT 
SCANNED) *.pdf format. All Sections 
listed in Table 1-3 (Cover Letter, 
Executive Summary, Proposal Sections 1 – 
7, and Appendices) shall be a separate 
*.pdf file.” 

Does NCTA want files separated by tab – 
meaning a separate .PDF file for the cover 
letter, the exec sum, etc. Or do you want 
one single file, separate from the price, 
that has each tab clearly bookmarked? 

The Proposer shall provide 
one single file, separate from 
the price with each tab clearly 
bookmarked. 

69.  33 of 40 RFP Part I, 4.1 Submission of 
Technical Proposal 

2. Page Presentation 
May tables/graphics be in a smaller, but 
still legible font such as an 8-point Arial 
font? 

No. 

70.  35 of 112 RFP Part III, Section 3.1.6 Utility Power and Stand-by 
Generators 

Would NCTA consider and allow the use 
of permanent generators instead of 
temporary, portable generators. 
Permanent generators will have less of a 
long-term cost and be more economical 
to maintain. All current NCTA locations 

No. Roadway space 
limitations prohibit the ability 
to install and maintain 
permanent generators. 
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with generators are using permanent 
generators.  

71.  Attachment 3 
Sheets SD-02, SD-03, SD-16, 

SD-17, SD-18, SD-19 Drawings 

May the contractor use a single cabinet 
for the tolling and AVI components?  
Additionally, would NCTA confirm this 
cabinet(s) are not being supplied by 
another party under a separate AVI 
contract? 

Yes. However, please refer to 
response in Question 27 
regarding the AVI cabinet. 

72.  
Tabs 2-1a & 3-

1a 
From D-7 – Price 

Proposal.xlsx Price Proposal Tables 

Bidders are unable to add additional 
Positions / Classifications to pricing tables 
in sheets 2-1a and 2-1b. 

Would NCTA please provide the 
Password for the Pricing Tables file or 
provide a file with additional rows and/or 
an additional sheet for 2-1a & 3-1a.  

No. NCTA will provide 20 
additional rows to each Sheet 
2-1a and 3-1a for the 
Proposer to use. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

2-1b does not exist so we 
assume that the Proposer 
means 2-1a and 3-1a. 

73.  Tab 3-1 
From D-7 – Price 

Proposal.xlsx Price Proposal Tables 

Where (under which line item) should 
bidders enter their costs for the 
Integration of the ITS equipment that is 
provided by the Constructor (including 
the purchase of any ITS equipment, 
monitoring tools/SW if needed)? 

Proposer shall enter this data 
in Sheet 2-1. 

74.  Tab 5-1 
From D-7 – Price 

Proposal.xlsx Price Proposal Tables 

Should bidders include the costs for any 
Recurring SW Support 
Licenses/Agreements in their OBO Level 
III System Maintenance cost/pricing, if 
needed? 

Yes. 
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75.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix General 

In the Conformance Matrix, NCTA asks 
for, within our proposal response, a 
detailed discussion of use cases.  May 
vendors include those use case discussions 
as an attachment to D-6 or a proposal 
Appendix – existing outside of the 50-page 
limit of Section 6?  

Yes, Proposers shall describe 
the use case compliance as an 
Appendix to the Technical 
Proposal and not included in 
the 50-page limit. 

76.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 78 

Is it expected that this training 
environment (Hardware and Software) 
will be required beyond the initial training 
period or is it to be maintained 
throughout contract term as part of Level 
3 maintenance?  

If it is to be maintained throughout, where 
should vendors include the cost?  

Yes. The training environment 
(Hardware and Software) 
shall be available and 
maintained throughout the 
Contract Term. The costs 
shall be added to Section 3-1. 

77.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 170 

“The Contractor shall be responsible for 
the integration of ITS to existing tools 
used by the Statewide Traffic Operations 
Center (STOC) and the Metrolina 
Regional Transportation Management 
Center (MRTMC).”  

Would NCTA please provide a list of 
existing tools to be integrated along with 
their ICDs? 

The STOC and MRTMC 
currently use VideoPro for 
video monitoring purposes 
and Vanguard for Dynamic 
Message Signs. In the near 
future, these tools will be 
replaced by a corridor 
management tool. An ICD is 
not currently available but will 
be provided as soon as the 
corridor management tool 
becomes operational. 
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78.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 431 

400 million transactions, including images, 
is a lot of data - would NCTA clarify the 
expected ratio of AVI transactions to 
Video transactions?  

Would NCTA consider summarization of 
data after two years?  

For Image storage is this ROI images only 
or all images sets for 10 years? 

For the purpose of sizing, the 
Proposers shall assume 60% 
ETC and 40% images 
transactions.  

NCTA expects the cloud 
technology to scale and use 
only storage and utility as 
required during the term of 
the Contract. 

Image storage is for all image 
sets. 

79.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 440 

The Image Verification Services are part of 
our standard offering except for 
Requirement 440 which states: “NCTA 
desires that the Contractor provide out of 
state Registered Owner Vehicle 
information that includes name, address 
and phone number of the Registered 
Owner to be used for its billing system at 
no additional cost to NCTA for the Term 
of the Contract.  NCTA may provide 
these services as part of its CBOS or may 
procure these services separately. For NC 
plates, the Contractor shall use NCDMV 
services provided through NCTA.” 

Considering that the CBOS already has all 
those controls in place for PCI DDS, 
would NCTA remove this requirement as 
it changes the dynamic of the OBO into a 
system that contains true Personal 
Identifying Information and would drive up 

NCTA may use the OBO for 
future services that may 
include controls for PCI DDS. 
With that, PII is acceptable if 
the Proposer can 
demonstrate that the 
proposed design can 
segregate non-secure data 
from PCI data. 
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the security, audit and access related costs 
both during design, operation and ongoing 
audit costs?  

80.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 473 and ID 603-623 

Most maintenance requirements, as 
written, do not separate Contractor’s 
responsibilities for maintenance KPIs and 
associated penalties from the 
responsibilities of those who will perform 
Level 1 and Level 2 maintenance.   

Please confirm that Contractor will only 
be held responsible for items within Level 
3 maintenance that are in Contractor’s 
direct control. 

Yes, the Contractor will only 
be held responsible for items 
within Level III Maintenance 
that are in the Contractor’s 
direct control. 

81.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 497 

Is the system required to have card 
readers or will key locks suffice for all 
external roadside doors?  

The system is required to 
have card readers for all 
access points. Proposers may 
include key locks for 
secondary access in addition 
to card readers. 

82.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 552 

Do security and background checks apply 
only to people who work onsite? 

No, security and background 
checks apply to staff that are 
required by NCTA and 
NCDOT security policies and 
procedures. 

83.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 582 

Requirement 429 states the OBO may be 
designed and located based upon the 
vendor's solution. If a vendor uses and on-
premise solution, this requirement is not 

Cloud solutions are provided 
on-premise in a private cloud, 
public clouds or as a hybrid 
solution. All solutions are 
acceptable to NCTA. There is 
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applicable.  Would NCTA please modify 
the RFP to resolve this issue?   

no conflict and no change will 
be made. 

84.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 585 

“For any month in which 100% of the AVI 
transactions are not transmitted in 
accordance with the approved ICD to the 
CBOS, The Contractor shall be assessed 
1.0 point for each 0.1% or portion thereof 
below the Performance Requirement.” 
This requirement is impractical to 
continuously validate due to the datasets 
involved. Would NCTA consider 99.99%? 

Yes, Table 2, item 8 is the 
correct performance 
requirement at 99.9%. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

85.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 587 

“For any month in which 99.995% of the 
image transactions are not transmitted in 
accordance with the approved ICD to the 
CBOS within 120 hours, the Contractor 
shall be assessed 1.0 point for each 0.1% 
or portion thereof below the Performance 
Requirement.”  

Would NCTA change to 99.99% instead 
up 99.995 as the extra .005 drives a larger 
sample set and makes demonstration of 
this KPI impractical? 

No. 

86.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 584.b 

b) To ensure the correct assignment of 
responsibility, would NCTA please make 
the following change to language: The 
CBOS validates the transactions to ensure 
that they comply with the agreed-upon 
ICD, and transactions that do not meet 
the ICD shall be rejected as incomplete or 

No, rejected transactions 
caused by the system (e.g. 
incomplete or inaccurate) 
shall count towards 
Contractor KPI requirements.   
No change will be made. 
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inaccurate. It is expected that Level 1 and 
Level II maintenance personnel are 
responsible for ensuring all rejected 
transactions are caught and corrected on 
time. Unless a rejected transaction is 
corrected and resubmitted with in the 
two (2) hour transmission period, they 
shall not meet this KPI. 

87.  Exhibit D-6 
Requirements Conformance 

Matrix ID 586.b 

b) To ensure the correct assignment of 
responsibility, would NCTA please make 
the following change to language: The 
CBOS validates the transactions to 
ensure that they comply with the 
agreed-upon ICD, and transactions 
that do not meet the ICD shall be 
rejected as incomplete or inaccurate.  
It is expected that Level 1 and Level II 
maintenance personnel are responsible for 
ensuring all rejected transactions are 
caught and corrected on time Unless a 
rejected transaction is corrected and 
resubmitted within the ninety-six 
(96) hour transmission period, they 
shall not meet this KPI. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 86. No change will 
be made. 

88.  14 1.9 Prohibited Communications 
During Evaluation 

Can Subcontractors speak to NCTA 
regarding this solicitation? Can 
subcontractors speak to NCTA individuals 
about other projects, not related to this 
solicitation? What steps. can a 
subcontractor take when speaking to 
NCTA individuals about unrelated 

No. As stated in Part I, 
Section 1.9, Proposers, 
including sub-contractors, 
cannot speak to NCTA about 
this RFP. 

Vendors can request meetings 
to discuss other matters but 
under no circumstance will 
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projects to ensure it does not violate this 
section 1.9? 

NCTA discuss this RFP as 
indicated in Part I, Section 1.9 
of this RFP. 

89.  18 1.23 Contractual Obligations 

Section 1.23 Contractual Obligations says 
NCTA will not evaluate or consider 
additional terms and conditions submitted 
with a Proposal. Will NCTA review 
Contractor submitted Third Party 
Documentation (third-party software 
EULA) in accordance with Section 2.3.10 
of Part III: Statement Of Work & 
Requirements? 

No. 

90.  18 1.24 Proposer’s Bid 

Please confirm obligations for Contractors 
do not apply to subcontractors unless the 
requirement specifically refers to 
"Subcontractor." 

Yes. 

91.  18 1.25 Certificate to Transact 
Business in NC 

Do software publishers acting as 
subcontractors need to supply a NC 
certificate of Authority to Transact 
Business in North Carolina? 

No. 

92.  27 3.2(C) 
Content of Technical 

Proposal: Proposal Section 
I: Firm Qualification 

Do these requirements also apply to 
subcontractors? E.g. do Proposers need to 
include 3 years of civil litigation or pending 
litigation for each of its subcontractors? 

No. 

93.  32 3.2(E)(7) 

Describe the Contractor’s 
system security compliance 
with NCDOT IT 
Communication & Security 
Policies as described in 

Will a discussion of Subcontractor's 
adherence to FedRAMP Moderate security 
protocols be sufficient to fulfill this 
section? 

No. The Proposer shall 
demonstrate compliance to 
the Requirements including 
Attachment 4. 
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Section 5.3.3 and 
Attachment 4: State of 
North Carolina, Statewide 
Information Security Manual 
included in Part III, Scope of 
Work and Requirements. 

94.  189 1.6.2 Software Warranties 

Will NCTA consider using 
subcontractor/Data Warehouse Software 
Publisher’s commercial warranty, as 
contained in its EULA in lieu of the 
warranty requested under this section? 

Yes, however all licenses shall 
be transferable to NCTA. 

95.  193 1.7 Software and License 

Understanding that Contractor will be 
submitting a subcontractor’s commercial 
cloud software, will NCTA consider 
substituting the commercial cloud 
provider’s license in accordance with its 
EULA, in lieu of the license required under 
this section? 

Yes, however all licenses shall 
be transferable to NCTA. 

96.  194 1.7.3 Escrow 

Understanding that Contractor will be 
submitting a subcontractor’s commercial 
cloud software, Will NCTA consider 
foregoing the escrow requirement for 
commercial cloud software providers? 

Yes, assuming it meets the 
requirements as outlined in 
Part IV, Section 1.7.3. 

97.  210 3.6 Software and Intellectual 
Property 

Please confirm that COTS software is not 
subject to section 3.6 and that NCTA will 
agree to a subcontractor/software 
publisher’s commercial software EULA. 

Yes, however all licenses shall 
be transferable to NCTA. 
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98.  71-72 5.4.2 Data Warehouse 

BI reporting - Can you please indicate the 
current number of BI users (total / 
concurrent) per the tools/applications 
they are utilizing?  How often are each of 
these tools used each day?  (i.e. 8 hours a 
day, 5 days a week?) 

Please assume 10 concurrent 
users using the system at any 
time of the day.    

99.  71-72 5.4.2 Data Warehouse 

Analytics and analysis - Can you please 
indicate the current number of analytic 
users (total / concurrent) per the 
tools/applications they are utilizing?  How 
often are each of these tools used each 
day?  (i.e. 4 hours a day, 5 days a week?). 
What types of analysis are they 
conducting (i.e. simple statistics, data 
mining, artificial intelligence, machine 
learning, etc) 

Please assume 10 concurrent 
users using the system at any 
time of the day. The Proposer 
shall support simple statistics, 
data mining, artificial 
intelligence, machine learning 
and add data aggregation and 
data transformations as well. 

100.  71-72 5.4.2 Data Warehouse 

How often does the State anticipate to 
load or update data into the 
DW?  Approximately how much data per 
cycle would that involve?  How many 
sources does this include? 

NCTA anticipates loading to 
the data warehouse at least 
daily with few near real-time 
connections. Proposers 
should assume 25 sources 
that includes static file 
systems. 

101.  
71-72 5.4.2 Enterprise Data Warehouse 

How much data does the state anticipate 
storing within the EDW?   

Please refer to Requirement 
431. 

102.  

100 (pdf)  

33 of 112 
Part III, Section 3.1.3 Communications 

Requirement 163 indicates that “The 

Contractor may install the secondary host 

at a Contractor location within the 

contiguous United States as approved by 

NCTA”.  

Confirmed, this is the 
continental United States. 
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Please confirm that this means all the 
continental States.  

103.  
115 (pdf)  

49 of 112 
Part III, Section 5.2 

RTCS – Functional 
Requirements 

Requirement 269 indicates that “All toll 

lanes and Toll Zones shall be capable of 

operating without any communications 

to the RTCS host for up to 90 days while 

storing all lane transactions to be 

processed when communications are 

restored.” Also Req. 376 indicates 

regarding Zone Controller that “Storage 

shall be sized to hold a minimum of 

ninety (90) days”, and 417 states that 

“The Zone Controller shall operate in a 

stand-alone mode for a minimum of 

ninety (90) days if communications to the 

host is down”.  

Requirement 310 specifies that “All RSS 

shall keep data for up to 30 days for 

temporary backup for OBO during 

transmission losses”.   

Please confirm which value is the valid one 
to keep data at the Zone Controller.  

The requirements assume an 
architecture that has zone 
controllers (RSS) and a host 
(RTCS) based on generally 
available industry solutions 
and both apply. If the 
Proposer has just a single tier 
structure, the longer 
retention period as stated in 
Requirement 417 shall 
govern. 

104.  
120 (pdf) 

54 of 112 
Part III, Section 5.2 

RTCS – Functional 
Requirements 

Requirement 310 indicates that “The 

OBO shall 2 years online retrieved in 

less than 2 seconds and 10 years 

archived data for all other toll 

The total is 10 years. With 
cloud technology we would 
expect the Contractor to 
work with NCTA to define a 
data management strategy as 
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transactions and account management 

system data”.  

Requirement 431 specifies that “The 

OBO shall be designed and sized to 

handle a minimum of 400 million Toll 

Transactions, including images, annually 

with storage capacity and application 

performance to store 10 years online.”.   

 Could you please clarify if the 
requirement calls for a total of 10 years of 
data (2 years online + 8 years archived) or 
a total of 12 year of data (2 years online + 
10 years archived)?  

commercially available. The 
Proposer shall state any 
assumptions for its proposed 
data management strategy 
(online, archive) or current 
industry practices (hot, warm, 
cold) in its Technical 
Proposal. 

105.  
141 (pdf) 

75 of 112 
Part III, Section 6.1 

Maintenance 
Responsibilities and 

Services 

As part of Level I and II Maintenance, 

NCTA will perform the Provision of an 

ample spare parts inventory to meet all 

Performance Requirements as required 

by NCTA. Requirement 323 indicates 

that “This Contractor shall provide 

recommended quantities of spare parts 

required for the operation of the tolling 

locations during the Contract Term. 

Costs for the replacement of spare 

parts during the Contract term shall be 

the responsibility of the Contractor”.   

Also Sheet 3-2 of Form D-7 Price 

Proposal refers to spares, not only for 

tolling system, but also for ITS 

Equipment, while Contractor will not be 

Yes, The Proposer shall 
include in its proposal the 
cost to provide the initial set 
of toll spare parts. 

Yes, the Proposer shall 
include in its proposal the 
cost to provide the initial set 
of ITS spare parts provided by 
the Contractor. 

 

Yes, the Proposer shall 

include in its proposal the 

cost of Tolling spare parts and 

ITS spare parts provided by 

the Contract. 
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responsible for the installation of the ITS 

Equipment.  

  

Could you please clarify the following:  

1. Shall the Contractor include in its 

proposal the cost to provide the 

initial set of Tolling spare parts?  

2. Shall the Contractor include in its 

proposal the cost to provide the 

initial set of ITS spare parts?  

3. Shall the Contractor include in its 

proposal the cost of ITS spare parts 

replacement?  

4. Shall the Contractor include in its 

proposal the cost of Tolling spare 

parts replacement?  

  

If Contractor is required to provide any 
ITS Spares, could you please provide make 
and model of each of the ITS components?  

The Proposer is not required 

to provide Spare Parts for 

equipment provided by the 

Constructor in its Technical 

Proposal. 

 

 

 

 

106.  
159 (pdf) 

93 of 112 
Part III, Section 6.3 

Intelligent Transportation 
System (ITS) Maintenance 

If ITS Equipment will be provided by 
others, and Levels I and II Maintenance 
will be provided by others, please indicate 
what tasks associated to Level III 
Maintenance are expected to be 
performed by the Contractor for the ITS 
equipment.  

The Contractor shall provide 
Level III Maintenance for all 
toll and ITS equipment 
provided by the Contractor. 
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107.  
162 (pdf) 

96 of 112 
Part III, Section 7.1.1 Performance measurement 

In Table 2, KPI number 3 regarding 
availability of OBO establishes a value of 
99.9%, but detailed description in 7.2.3 
establishes a value of 99.95%. Please 
confirm the value to be considered is 
99.9% as is Express Lanes availability.  

Table 2 Performance 
Requirements are correct.  
An Addendum will be issued. 

108.  Sheet 4 Form D-7 Price Proposal 
RSS and ITS SW and HW 

Maint 

Please confirm that after item 10 there 
should be an item 11 for the “Extension 2 
– Year 3 of Maintenance” taking value 
from sheet “4-1 – RSS-ITS Maint by Year” 
cell F16  

Yes, an Addendum will be 
issued. 

109.  Sheet 6-1 Form D-7 Price Proposal Image Verification Services 

Please confirm that content of cell A13 
should refer to up to 4 images per vehicle 
instead of 8 (as the rest of the concepts in 
this sheet)  

Yes, an Addendum will be 
issued. 

110.  
28 (pdf) 

21 of 40 Part I, Section 3.2 
C. Proposal Section 1: 

Firm Qualifications 

As part of Section I it is requested to 
submit a detailed statement providing the 
Proposer background information relative 
to several issues. In order not to use part 
of the limited space allowed to Sections 1 
to 5, please confirm if this Statement can 
be included in Section 7 as other Forms 
requested in this section 1  

No, information shall be 
provided in Section 1. 

111.  
2 (pdf) 

1 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Toll Operations Use 
Cases 

Some of the Use Cases (ie. UC-02 

regarding HOV trips or UC-04 regarding 

HOV enforcement transactions) seem 

not to apply to this project, at least 

initially (“I-485 Express Lanes will not 

allow exempt travel for HOV vehicles” 

or “future High Occupancy Vehicle 

HOV Enforcement tests will 
be conducted and run to 
make the functionality ready 
for Go-Live. NCTA may 
implement this functionality at 
Go-Live or after Go-Live. 
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(HOV) enforcement”, or “additional 

HOV enforcement options” or “pre-

registered as HOV, with three or more 

occupants for future occupancy and 

rideshare discount programs”).   

Please clarify if these types of Use Cases 
will have to be included in the test cases 
of the different Test Phases of the Project.   

112.  
2 (pdf) 

1 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Toll Operations Use 
Cases 

Use Case 03 while referring to standard 

violation transactions or Use Case 05 

referring to Manual Image Review include 

concept as trip construction that is not 

applicable to the Project, at least initially 

(“The DPS shall support future trip 

building” or “No zone or trip building is 

expected on the I-485 Express Lanes 

project.”).   

Please clarify if the description of Use 
Cases defined as minimum will be updated 
/ modified to fit for the particularities of 
this Project.   

Yes, there is no trip building 
on this project. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

113.  
3 (pdf) 

2 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Toll Operations Use 
Cases 

Use Cases 08, 09 and 10 could be 
understood to include field technicians’ 
actuations. Please confirm that only 
operation of MOMS will be tested and no 
actuations from third-parties (Level I 
Maintenance staff either for system 
monitoring or field works) will be needed.  

The Contractor shall train 
Level 1 and Level 2 staff. With 
that said, the use cases shall 
test all scenarios. As such the 
testing shall test all levels. 
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114.  
100 (pdf) 

34 of 112 
Part III – Section 3.1.4 

Intelligent 

Transportation System 

Requirement 170 establishes that “The 

Contractor shall be responsible for the 

integration of ITS to existing tools used 

by the Statewide Traffic Operations 

Center (STOC) and the Metrolina 

Regional Transportation Management 

Center (MRTMC)”  

Q1- Please confirm if Dynamic Pricing will 
interface the existing tools (i.e. ATMS) 
used by the STOC and the MRTMC or 
will take traffic inputs directly from the 
ITS equipment (i.e. MVDS) installed by the 
Constructor.  

Q2- Which are the existing tools used by 
the STOC and the MRTMC, and will the 
Contractor have access and training to 
perform the integration of new ITS 
(provided and installed by the 
Constructor) in the existing tools 
(provided, installed, configured and 
operated by third parties)? 

The STOC will use The 
Dynamic Pricing System via 
the application provided by 
the Contractor and may 
connect to the MVD data 
directly as well. 

The Contractor shall develop 
its training separate from the 
current STOC operations.  
The Contractor provided 
training will be to provide 
training for additional 
functionality required by I-485 
Express Lanes Project. 

Please refer to Question 77 
for additional details about 
the tools used by the STOC 
and the MRTMC. If a general 
training is needed to perform 
the integration of the new ITS 
and existing tools, NCTA may 
be able to arrange for it.  

115.  
4 (pdf) 

3 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Toll Operations Use 
Cases 

Use Case 21 refers to speed dashboards 

for pricing determination. Requirement 

452 requires only to provide list of MVD 

data including speed, density and 

occupancy by lane, but not to a 

dashboard or graphical representation of 

these traffic data.   

Please confirm if an Advance Traffic 
Management System (ATMS) to display 
these traffic conditions has to be provided 

The Contractor shall use 
MVD’s and other RTCS 
equipment provided by the 
Contractor to develop this 
information. 
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in addition to the Dynamic Pricing System, 
or will these functions be performed by an 
existing ATMS central systems in STOC 
and MRTMC?  

116.  
6 (pdf) 

5 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Traffic Management 
Operational Scenarios 

TUC-25 to 31 refer to typical day normal 
operations of the ITS system.   

Please confirm if an Advance Traffic 
Management System (ATMS) displaying 
traffic conditions, managing traffic-related 
events or incidents, generating STOC 
reports, … has to be provided in addition 
to the Dynamic Pricing System, or  will 
these functions be performed by an 
existing ATMS central systems in STOC 
and MRTMC?  

Yes, these will be functions 
needed as part of the DPS. 

117.  
4 (pdf) 

3 of 6 
Attachment 7 Use Cases 

Toll Operations Use 
Cases 

Please clarify scenario description of Use 
Case 22 regarding Express Lanes Account 
– New Price Alerts.  

Use Case 22 refers to 
dynamic price updates made 
available to the CSR to 
lookup. An Addendum will be 
issued. 

118.  N/A Form D-6 Requirements 
Conformance Matrix 

As per the Instructions to fulfil the 

Requirements Conformance Matrix we 

have to respond in Column 3 with the 

Status of each Requirement. Some of the 

Requirements are neither functional nor 

technological (ie. Requirement 8 

regarding cooperation with several 

entities).   

Please confirm how we should respond to 
these type of requirements as they are not 

For non-functional 
requirements, the Proposer 
shall indicate they will comply 
with base solution or 
processes. If the Contractor 
processes will be changed or 
added. 
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a base solution, nor a modified or 
developed one.  

119.  
141 (pdf) 

75 of 112 
Part III-Section 6.1 

Maintenance 
Responsibilities and 

Services 

As per this section the Contractor shall 

perform Monitoring activities under the 

Level III Maintenance services. See list of 

services to be provided by the 

Contractor:  

“ …. g) Monitoring Services…”  

This kind of activities are typically included 
in the Level I and Level II Maintenance as 
the Level III is a more specialized on-
demand services.   

We would like to request that the 
Monitoring services are covered by the 
Level I and Level II Maintenance 
Contractor to avoid the need of a large 
amount of resources in the Level III 
Maintenance service.   

The Level III Contractor shall 
provide the monitoring 
systems and provide Level III 
Maintenance associated with 
the monitoring. The Level 1 
and II monitoring teams will 
use the Contractor system to 
provide Level 1 and Level II 
monitoring. Level III will be 
provided by the Contractor 
within the same ITSM. The 
Contractor will be expected 
to provide 24/7 remote 
support for Level I and II 
services.   

120.  
162 (pdf) 

96 of 112 
Part III-Section 7.1.1 

Performance 
Measurement 

As described in this section, the 

Contractor shall comply with the 

Performance Requirements listed in the 

Table2. (Page 96). As the Contractor 

shall be responsible for just the Level III 

Maintenance, how situations where Level 

I and Level 2 Maintenance providers fail 

to carry out with their responsibilities 

will be regulated?   

 

Level 1 and Level II work will 
be tracked and managed by 
NCTA. The work will be 
regulated by the Maintenance 
Plan and procedures which 
will provide roles and 
responsibilities for the Level 1 
and II Maintenance Services 
vendor(s) and the Level III 
Maintenance Services 
provided by the Contractor. 
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In example, an equipment replacement is a 
Level I Maintenance responsibility, and 
failures to do that could lead to not meet 
the performance requirements. How this 
kind of situations shall be regulated?  

121.  
174 (pdf) 

108 of 112 
Part III, Section 7.6 

Maintenance Priorities. 

Response and Repair 
Times 

As described in this section the 

Contractor shall define in a weekly basis 

the on-site resources.   

On the other hand,  the requirement 

488 calls for the “Manual retrieval of data 

from the Zone Controllers and 

download of the Transponder status list 

and toll rate and schedule files in the 

event of extended communications 

failure.”, which will imply a permanent 

team during the maintenance period.  

Is the NCTA intention that the 
Contractor shall allocate a permanent 
team during the maintenance period 
despite of the fact that the Contractor will 
be responsible just for Level III 
Maintenance?  

The Contractor may provide 
a local team if desired, but it 
is not required by NCTA. 
The Level III Maintenance 
Contractor shall support all 
Requirements including 488 
but the Level 1 and Level II 
Maintenance vendors may 
perform this work. 

122.  
136 (pdf) 

70 of 112 
Part III, Section 5.3.11 

Image Verification Services 
(optional) 

Requirement 440 states that “NCTA 

desires that the Contractor provide out 

of state Registered Owner Vehicle 

information” and that “For NC plates, 

the Contractor shall use NCDMV 

services provided through NCTA.”  

This requirement seems to be related 

with CBOS. It is not clear the overall 

Regarding Question 1:  Yes, 
NCTA intends to integrate 
DMV related services in NC 
and out of state with the 
OBO. NCTA may retain the 
same services with the CBOS 
or remove from the CBOS 
but that is separate and 
distinct from this RFP. 
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workflow regarding Image Verification 

and Registered Owner Vehicle 

information.   

  

Q1: Please clarify if this service shall be 

integrated at OBO level and what is the 

required workflow.  

  

Q2: This kind of services typically have a 

cost per query performed. Could you 

please clarify if we have to include this 

operational cost in our proposal? If this is 

the case, could you please confirm that 

we only have to consider this operational 

cost in the pricing for the optional Image 

Verification Services?  

Regarding Question 2:  The 
cost for the lookup is a 
desired service by NCTA.  
Proposers may elect to offer 
this as an innovation at no 
additional cost to NCTA. 

 

 

123.  
97 (pdf) 

31 of 112 
Part III, Section 3.1. 

General Design 
Requirement 

ITS delivery and Maintenance obligations. 

As stated in the RFP, the design of the 

ITS for I-485 Express Lanes is currently 

underway and the provide plan sets will 

change as design progresses.  

• We believe that the contractor should 

actively participate in such design in 

order to provide comments and 

feedback including without limitation, 

locations of the equipment, type of 

devices, maintainability of selected 

locations, spares, etc. When the 

contractor will be fully liable for the ITS 

Design as stated in req. 167 "The 

The design is substantially 
complete. As a courtesy to 
the Contractor, NCTA has 
included all available drawings 
and information in the 
Attachments. The Contractor 
in conjunction with NCTA 
will participate in relevant 
design-build and construction 
meetings with the 
Constructor. 
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Contractor shall design, furnish, install, 

and commission additional ITS devices if 

deemed necessary to meet the 

Performance Requirements. The 

Contractor shall be responsible for any 

additional costs." Will the NCTA include 

a milestone for the contractor to sign off 

the ITS design?  

• How the design will include the 
comments of the Contractor?  

124.  N/A N/A N/A 

Could you please provide the Tax ID of 

the NTCA for our internal records?  

No change will be made. See 
Part IV Terms and 
Conditions, Section 3.7.1 
Government Restrictions. 

125.  
69 (pdf) 

3 of 112 
Part III, Section 1.2 Summary of Works 

Summary of Works indicates that the 

Contractor shall be responsible for 

furnishing and mobilizing all required 

Equipment, facilities, and resources, 

among other, for Maintenance of Traffic 

(MOT) (see paragraph g.).   

Answer to question 28 in Set 2 of 

Proposer Questions NCTA Responses 

indicates that “Level I and II or NCTA 

will provide Maintenance of Traffic 

Services as required”.  

Please confirm that no services regarding 

Maintenance of Traffic will be done by the 

Contractor, other than coordinating with 

Level I and Level II service providers, or 

Level I and II or NCTA will 
provide Maintenance of 
Traffic Services as required 
during the Operations and 
Maintenance Phase. 

 

The Contractor is responsible 
for all lane closures during the 
Implementation Phase and if 
necessary, to complete work 
not completed during the 
Implementation Phase during 
Operations and Maintenance 
Phases. 
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NCTA, NCDOT Division 10 or the 

Constructor.  

126.  
140 (pdf) 

74 of 112 
Part III, Section 6 

Maintenance and Software 
Support Services 

The requirements of the RFP describe an 

integral and mission critical support 

maintenance service including without 

limitation obligations of 24*7 monitoring, 

preventive, corrective, upgrades, reports, 

availability KPIs, time to repair KPIs, etc, 

however the Contractor shall only 

provide Level III Maintenance Services and 

other contractors will be responsible for 

Level I and Level II Maintenance Services. 

The fulfillment of availability KPIs, time to 

repair KPIs, and many other NCTA 

services request a seamless maintenance 

team that provides all the activities and 

maintenance levels (I, II, and III). We 

believe that it will be very difficult to 

contractually implement and manage the 

scheme described in the RFP with 

different contractors but being the Level 

III the Contractor liable for the KPI 

penalties, direct damages, loss of revenue, 

etc. is quite not actually practical. We 

believe that the Contractor may be taking 

liabilities for the works, acts, and 

omissions of level I & II, the RFP should 

No change will be made.  
Please refer to response in 
Questions #80 and #120. 
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identify more clearly the boundaries 

between the levels.   

 

We propose that the definition of Non-

Chargeable Failures (Section 7.10) does 

include as Non-chargeable events “failures 

due to works, acts, or omissions of the 

Contractor providing level I & II 

maintenance services to NCTA”. 

127.  
173 (pdf) 

107 of 112 
Part III, Section 7.5 Direct Damages 

Section 7.5 calls for Direct Damages. 

Could the NCTA elaborate what sort of 

Direct Damages could the Contractor 

face? Would be the direct damages 

included within the maximum monthly 

adjustment amount that may be made by  

NCTA to the Contractor’s monthly 
invoice is 25%. (Section 7.3)   

Yes, please refer to Part III, 
Section 7.3. 

128.  
185 (pdf) 

3 of 40 
Part IV, Section 1.3.1 Actual Damages 

Actual Damages. (1.3.1-2) Lost revenue. 

Does NCTA have any estimation about 

the expected traffic and revenue on each 

tolling location?  

AADT traffic estimates are 
available and provided in 
Question 47. Please refer to 
response in Question 47. 

129.  
194 (pdf) 

12 of 40 
Part IV, Section 1.7.3 Escrow 

Payment for Costs of Escrow (1.7.3.-3) 

“The Contractor’s obligation to maintain 

the escrow in place shall continue after 

the expiration or termination of the 

Contract Term until the Contractor 

receives Notice from NCTA that the 

escrow is no longer required, pursuant to 

paragraph 5 below, Release of Escrow 

Deposits”. Will NCTA compensate the 

No. 



Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 

 

Page 30 of 107 

# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 
Contractor for this ongoing obligation 

beyond the Contract time?  

130.  
127 (pdf) 

61 of 112 
Part III, Section 3.5.4.3 

Automatic Vehicle 

Detection and 
Classification (AVDC) 

System 

The requirement 355 calls for some 

classifications that cannot be detected 

using sensors installed on the gantry (i.e. 

emergency vehicles, profit/non-profit 

condition…).   

 

On the other hand, the business rules 

stablish in its Policy 3 “Toll Rate – By 

Vehicle Classification” another 

classification, which is used to determine 

the tariff and that can be detected using 

sensors installed on the gantry  (i.e. axels, 

volume…).   

We understand the Contractor shall only 

detect the parameters included in the 

business rules (i.e. axels, volume…)  and 

the ones included in the requirement 355 

does not need to be detected. Please 

confirm.  

Correct, the Contractor shall 
provide the information 
required in the Fully Formed 
Toll Transaction for the 
NCTA CBOS to post to the 
correct account. 

If provided, Image Verification 
Services shall process (verify 
image plate numbers and 
jurisdiction), post to OBO 
and not send to CBOS.  The 
Transaction types includes 
Emergency vehicles. A full list 
of transaction types will be 
provided during 
Implementation Phase. 

131.  22 of 40 3.2.D Key Team Qualifications 

Will the Authority allow one resource to 

hold two different titles within the 

Project? For example, can one resource 

be the Technical Manager as well as the 

Test Manager given their similar functions 

and responsibilities within the 

For Key Personnel, No. Key 
Personnel shall be the five (5) 
named unique personnel. For 
other personnel not listed as 
Key Personnel, the 
Contractor may use multiple 
people in different roles. 
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development and implementation of the 

project? 

132.  18 of 112 2.3.5.1 Master Test Plan 

Requirement #64 - Please provide a listing 

of interfaces NCTA plans to provide in 

support of OIT and SIT. 

NCTA will provide a list of 
interfaces during the Master 
Test Plan development. 

133.  19 of 112 2.3.5.2 Interface Test Plan 

Requirement #71 – This looks to be a 

duplicate requirement identical to 

requirement #64. Please clarify this or 

remove the requirement that is not 

applicable. 

Requirement 71 is a duplicate 

and will be deleted. An 

Addendum will be issued 

134.  34 of 112 
3.1.4 

 

General Design 
Requirements - ITS 

Requirement #170 - Please provide 

specific details on the current 

infrastructure and “tools” at the MRTMC 

and STOC that the Contractor will be 

required to integrate ITS devices to/with. 

Which ITS devices will require integration 

to/with these tools in relation to the 

Dynamic Pricing system? 

The Contractor shall 
integrate ITS devices provided 
in Attachment 5. Please refer 
to responses in Question #77 
and #114 for additional 
details.  

135.  35 of 112 3.1.5 
General Design 

Requirements - WWVD 

Requirement #172 - Please provide more 

information on the WWVD 

system/technology that will be integrated 

into the toll system and at what level? If 

the Contractor is ultimately responsible 

for the performance of the WWVD 

system (as part of monthly KPI’s), will they 

have any input into the technology that 

will be proposed? 

No additional information is 
available at this time other 
than what is specified in 
Attachment 3.  
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136.  50 of 112 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Requirement #275 – Please clarify 

whether this requirement should be 

contained within the Constructor’s ITS 

requirements as the TRS signs will be 

specified, procured, and installed by the 

constructor. 

The TRS shall be provided by 
the Contractor. 

137.  52 of 112 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Requirement #293 – Could the Authority 

please clarify this requirement? 

NCTA requests that the 
Contractor verify by testing 
all functions outlined in 
Requirement 293 during all 
tests as required in the 
Contract. Specifically, the 
Contractor shall plan to verify 
Image Verification Services 
during all tests. 

138. c 60 of 112 5.3.4.2 AVI System Integration 

Would the Authority please provide a 

listing of all equipment NCTA and their 

AVI provider will be required to provide 

as part of this contract (i.e. Reader, lane 

kit, cabinet, etc.). 

As part of this Contract, 
NCTA will provide the 
readers, lane kits, antennas, 
antenna mounting kits, 
antennas amplifiers, and 
reader enclosures (cabinets). 

139.  60 of 112 5.3.4.2 AVI System Integration 

Could the Authority please clarify 

whether AVI is required on shoulder 

lanes? The RFP states that classification is 

not required on shoulder lanes but is 

silent on AVI coverage. 

AVDC is not required. AVI 
and ICPS Services are 
required for shoulder 
coverage. A default class may 
be used. 

140.  61 of 112 5.3.5 Dynamic Pricing System 

Requirement #359 – Will the Authority 

please provide their definition of toll 

segment and toll zone rates in relation to 

fare determination? 

The toll rates are not yet 
finalized but will be provided 
for each tolling locations. 
Rates are applied at each 
tolling location and no trip 
building is anticipated for Go-
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Live. The Toll Rates will be 
provided based on the vehicle 
classification scheme. 

141.  61 of 112 5.3.5 Dynamic Pricing System 

Requirement #361 - Will toll rates be 

required to be transmitted to the CBOS 

(assuming “CBO” is intended to mean 

“CBOS”) directly from the RSS? Also, 

please clarify "via GUI and system". 

Yes, CBO is CBOS. 

Yes, toll rates will be required 
to be transmitted to the 
CBOS.  

The DPS shall display through 
a User Interface (GUI) 
current and historical toll 
rates for all online date (2 
years). The GUI shall be 
searchable by date, time, and 
location and shall be accessed 
via a data feed that can be 
interfaced to external 
systems. 

142.  62 of 112 5.3.5 Dynamic Pricing System 

Requirement #367 - Will NCTA require a 

density-based calculation for Dynamic 

Pricing or will it be based on the average 

speed as denoted in Attachment 2 Policy 

17.4.1? 

The DPS shall provide 
functionality to support 
density-based calculation and 
average speed. 

143.  63 of 112 5.3.7.2 Zone Operations 

Requirement #378 - Could the Authority 

please clarify this requirement? 

The Requirement is clear. 
Remote and local access to 
the zone controllers is 
required to be able to shut 
down the systems or make 
major operational changes if 
required by the Contractors 
solution and design. 
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144.  64 of 112 5.3.7.4 Revenue Class 

Requirement #386 - Please confirm what 

policy or section within the "NCTA 

Business Policies for NC Quick Pass" 

defines the assignment of revenue vehicle 

class in normal operations and degraded 

mode. 

The RTCS shall provide the 
data in Requirement 389 for 
NCTA CBOS to make 
revenue determination for 
normal operations and 
degraded mode. 

145.  64 of 112 5.3.7.4 Revenue Class 

Requirement #388 - This requirement 

seems to conflict with requirement #355 

regarding the defined class structure. If the 

defined class structure for an extended 

vehicle is based on length and toll rates 

are set based on this, how does NCTA 

expect to advertise/charge a 5-axle vehicle 

outside of the extended vehicle rate? 

The extended vehicle class 
(greater than dimensions) is 
one rate regardless of the 
additional axles (inferred or 
actual) are counted. 

146.  71 of 112 5.4.1 Data Summarization 

Requirement #453 - Please provide more 

information on the detail required for this 

NTP +30 submittal. Given that the draft 

SDDD is not required to be approved 

until August 2021 (per Exhibit A), is the 

intent for this data to be provided by the 

end of the Report Workshop milestone 

(more so NTP + 60)? 

NCTA is seeking a 
commercial ready and 
available system with little 
modifications to operate the 
485 Express Lanes. The Data 
Dictionary should be readily 
available to begin data 
analytics design and allow 
NCTA to prepare its own 
testing and operations for 
tests and operations. 

147.  77 of 112 6.2 
Roadway Maintenance 

Service – General 
Requirements 

Requirement #480 - Please consider 

revising this requirement to not include 

cost language from requirement #479. 

Additional services should be handled 

differently than "per locate". Labor should 

be charged based on the additional service 

Agreed. Requirement 480 will 
be updated as follows: “If 
required by the Contractor, 
NCTA approved repair or 
other services that fall outside 
the Maintenance Services 
described herein shall be 
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rates provided in Form D-7 and material 

should be charged at cost + X. 

invoiced at the services as 
defined in Exhibit D-7.”  

An Addendum will be issued. 

148.  80 of 112 6.2.5 
RTCS Hardware 

Maintenance & SW 
Support Services 

Requirement #497 - Who is responsible 

for the maintenance of the physical DVAS 

camera system (cameras, cables, 

connectors, etc.)? The assumption is that 

this will be included in the L1/L2 

maintenance contract and L3 maintenance 

does not cover the physical DVAS camera 

system 

Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 is 
not defined but it is assumed 
this means Level 1 
Maintenance Services, Level II 
Maintenance Services and 
Level III Maintenance Services. 

Yes, Level 1 and Level II 
Maintenance service vendors 
will provide on-site repair of 
the DVAS system. However, 
Level III Maintenance Services 
does apply to DVAS systems 
for escalated issues and other 
Level III Maintenance Services. 

149.  

85 of 112 7.1 Preventative Maintenance 

Requirement #512 - Under Level 3 

Maintenance, please clarify what lane 

closures the Contractor will be 

responsible for assuming that their scope 

of work only pertains to “patch 

management and software changes” and 

the listing of services described in Section 

6.1 item 3. 

NCTA or Level 1 and Level I1 
Maintenance Services 
providers will provide lane 
closures during Maintenance 
and Operations Phases.    

All patch management and 
software changes for new 
features or functions and 
configuration changes that 
require software changes are 
required by Maintenance 
Level III.  
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The Contractor shall describe 
these Services in the 
Maintenance Plan. 

150.  

104 of 112 7.2 
RTCS Performance 
Requirement Details 

Requirements #592 to #593 - This 

requirement for "Image Verification 

Services - Transaction Accuracy" is not 

listed in Table 2: RTCS Performance 

Requirements 

It will be added to Table 2.  
An Addendum will be issued. 

151.  

104 of 112 7.2 
RTCS Performance 
Requirement Details 

Requirements #592 to #593 - The 

performance requirements for Image 

Transaction Complete and Timely 

Transmission seem to conflict with the 

Performance Requirements for Image 

Verification Services - Transaction 

Accuracy. Assuming a Contractor does 

not provide image verification services and 

they are completed through NCTA, how 

will both KPI’s be structured so that the 

Contractor will only be responsible for 

transmission timeliness to the CBOS? 

If the Proposer does not 
provide Image Verification 
Services, the time required 
will be subtracted from the 
Contractors allowed time and 
not counted.  

Regarding Requirement 593, 
accuracy related to image 
review will not be counted 
but posting accurate 
transactions will be counted 
against the Contractor. 

152.  9 - 11 of 777 Attachment 3 Gantry Structure Detail 

Are the yellow highlights/comment boxes 

meant to redact information from these 

sheets? If so, can NCTA provide a clean 

version of this document? 

No, there is no confidential 
information in Attachment 3.  
The yellow marks will be 
removed. An Addendum will 
be issued.  

153.  2 of 112 1.2 
Summary of Scope of 

Work 

It states that “Most” ITS equipment is 

provided by constructor.  Is there a list of 

items not provided? 

All available and known ITS 
devices can be found in 
Attachment 5. 
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154.  12 2.2.2 
Reports Design 

Workshops 

Is the expectation to have reports 

workshops prioritized given the need for 

large data analysis efforts from simulated 

data use cases? 

Yes. In addition, NCTA will 
integrate test data to build its 
own reports and data 
analytics to verify outputs 
from use cases. 

155.  16 of 112 2.3.5 
Testing Program 
Documentation 

The MTP is required to have test cases as 

stated in 2.3.5.1 but it also states that FAT 

test cases are to be included with the 

MTP submittal.  What is the need for test 

cases in the MTP if there are subsequent 

test phase documents for test case 

inclusion?  Are the test cases in the MTP 

specific to FAT?   

The FAT test cases shall be 
included with MTP to reduce 
the review cycles and prepare 
for the FAT during the MTP 
planning. 

156.  64 of 112 5.3.7.5 Fare Determination 

Requirement #394:  Can the Authority 

please clarify the location in the current 

business rules documentation where toll 

rate information based on lane health and 

agency codes resides? 

The Rates will be developed 
based on the Vehicle 
Classification defined in 
Requirement 355. 

Agency codes are in the BOS-
RSS ICD. 

157.  66 of 112 5.3.7.8 Transmitting Data 

Requirement #405:  Please clarify this 

requirement in relation to “write-over” 

functionality. Is this “write-over” 

functionality related to retention (purging) 

or is the “write-over” functionality related 

to any changes to the transaction data 

resulting from processing at the OBO? 

NCTA desires to use a 
commercial cloud provider.  
The Proposer shall describe a 
data management plan 
including how it plans to 
write-over and purge data. 

158.  95 of 112 7.1 
General Performance 

Requirements 

Requirement #577:  Please clarify if this 

requirement is applicable in the event of a 

force majeure event taking place. 

Yes, it is applicable. 
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159.  3 Attachment 7 Use Cases 

UC-08: This use case mentions 

maintenance operations should be in place 

24/7 during UAT, however there is no 

mention of UAT test phase within the 

RFP.  Please clarify this requirement. 

UAT will be updated to Test 
and applies to FAT, OIT, and 
SIT. An Addendum will be 
issued. 

160.  3 Attachment 7 Use Cases 

UC-10:  Please clarify this requirement in 

terms of a redundant site? 

If redundancy exists within 
the Proposers solution, the 
Contractor shall demonstrate 
how it fails over within the 
toll zone controller or 
between toll zone controllers. 

161.  3 Attachment 7 Use Cases 

UC-13:  Please identify the business policy 

section which lists the failure priorities. 

The Priorities will be defined 
with the Contractor system 
design.  

162.  51-52 of 112 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Could the Authority please clarify 

requirement #290? 

Requirement 290 is intended 
to provide a description of 
the data required by NCTA 
to conduct internal audit of 
transactions during 
Implementation Phase tests, 
and Operations and 
Maintenance Phase. 

163.  61 of 112 5.3.4.3 

Automatic Vehicle 
Detection and 

Classification (AVDC) 
System 

Regarding requirement #355, can the 

Authority please elaborate on how 

vehicles that fall outside of the NCTA 

vehicle classification structure should be 

handled, such as vehicles greater than 8.5’ 

in height, or two-axle motor vehicles 

towing a trailer with two or more axles? 

Vehicles greater than 2 axles 
should be included in 
Extended Vehicle category in 
Requirement 355. 

Assuming 8.5’ was meant to 
be greater than 8.5’ in 
WIDTH not HEIGHT, they 
should be included in 
Extended Vehicles as well. 
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164.  102 of 112 7.2.6 
Image Transaction 

Complete and Timely 
Transmission 

Requirement 586 states, “The Contractor 

shall process and transmit all image 

transactions to the existing CBOS within 

one hundred-twenty (120) hours after the 

vehicle travels through the tolling point.” 

And further states that, “The CBOS 

validates the transactions to ensure that 

they comply with the agreed-upon ICD, 

and transactions that do not meet the 

ICD shall be rejected as incomplete or 

inaccurate. Unless a rejected transaction is 

corrected and resubmitted within the 

ninety-six (96) hour transmission period, 

they shall not meet this KPI.” Can the 

Authority please clarify from where the 

96-hour transmission period is derived? 

For transactions submitted 
from the OBO by the 
Contractor to the CBO that 
get rejected, the Contractor 
has up to 96 hours from the 
transmission period. If a 
rejected transaction is 
transmitted after the 96 hours 
the Contractor will not be 
considered compliant with 
this Requirement. 

165.  19 of 40 3.2 – Table I-3 Proposal Page Limitations 

Would the Authority allow the drawings, 

diagrams and flowcharts that are required 

in Proposal Section 3 to be included as 

one or more appendices and excluded 

from the 20-page limit? 

Yes, please review response 
in Question 67. 

166.  36 of 112 4.1.1 Installation Plan 

Requirement #179.e – Will the 

Contractor have unlimited access to the 

facility during the installation phase. 

Yes, but it should be noted 
that all access will be 
coordinated with NCTA and 
the Constructor.  

167.  42 of 112 4.1.8 Electrical Work 

Requirement #213.c: Will a grounding 

location be provided at each equipment 

pad and tied to the gantry ground? 

Yes, this will be determined in 
the field by the Contractor, 
Constructor, NCTA, and 
NCDOT. 
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168.  68 of 112 5.3.9 UPS 

Requirement #425: Is the transfer switch 

expected to have remote access and 

control when the generator is portable? 

Yes. 

169.  87 of 112 6.2.9 Spare Parts 

Requirement #527: Will the NCTA 

storage facility be located as not to 

adversely affect TTRR? 

Yes, all assumptions related 
to the storage facility shall be 
provided in the Proposers 
Technical Proposal. At a 
minimum this should include 
the size of the toll facility. 

170.  Form D-7 Sheet 4,4-1 

Base Contract and Optional 
Extensions RSS and ITS 

Hardware Maintenance and 
Software Support Services 

Cost 

The configuration of column C on sheet 4 

is linked to sheet 4-1, however, there are 

10 years on sheet 4 and 11 on sheet 4-1, 

can the authority clarify how many should 

be priced? 

It should be 11 years. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

171.  Form D-7 Sheet 4-1,4-2 

Base Contract and Optional 
Extensions RSS and ITS 
Maintenance Services 

Schedule by Year 

The configuration of column D on sheet 

4-1 implies linkage to 4-2 once 4-2 is 

populated, can authority provide solution 

for protected cells or guidance in 

population? 

Yes, the cells will be 
unlocked. An Addendum will 
be issued. 

172.  Form D-7 Sheet 6-1 

Base Contract and Optional 
Extensions Image 

Verification Services Only 
Costs (Optional) 

Year 4 states that 8 images would be 

potentially evaluated by an image reviewer 

which differs from other years evaluated, 

should vendor use this assumption? 

No, Year 4 should be 4 
images. An Addendum will be 
issued. 

173.  General General General 

Please clarify if “Day” refers to a Calendar 

Day or a Business Day when used w/out 

an additional descriptor. 

If specified as Day this shall be 
treated as a Calendar Day. 

174.  
Part III, Page 

18 of 112 (pdf 
84) 

2.3.5 Testing Program 
Documentation 

And 

Attachment 7 – Use Cases 
And 

Site Acceptance Test (SIT) is defined in 
the Attachment 7 Use Cases and in 
Requirement 66.  However, Site 
Acceptance Test (SIT) it is not included in 

Yes, SIT must be completed 
prior to Go-Live. 
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Attachment 7 – Use Cases Requirement 66 – Site 
Installation Test (SIT) 

And 

Exhibit A – Project 
Implementation Schedule 

Exhibit A – Project Implementation 
Schedule.  Exhibit A includes  

Is Site Acceptance Test (SIT) a pre-Go-
Live test requirement? 

175.  Page 1 (PDF 3) Exhibit A 
Exhibit A – Project 

Implementation Schedule 

“Installation and Commissioning Test” is 

referred to in Exhibit A – Project 

Implementation Schedule.  However, this 

test is not defined in Attachment 7 – Use 

Cases or 2.3.5 Testing Program 

Documentation.  

Can the Authority please clarify where 

this test is defined?  

Can the Authority please provide details 

concerning the timing and scope of the 

“Installation and Commissioning Test”? 

Revised to say Installation and 
Commissioning of the first toll 
zone. There is no Installation 
and Commissioning Test. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

176.  
Part III, Page 

18 of 112 (pdf 
84) 

2.3.5 Testing Program 
Documentation 

And 

Attachment 7 – Use Cases 

Attachment 7 – Use Cases 

And 

Requirement 67 - 
Operations Acceptance 

Test (OAT) 

Requirement 67 states Operational 
Acceptance Testing (OAT) occurs 
immediately following SIT. 

Please confirm that Operational 

Acceptance Testing (OAT) starts and 

finishes after Go-Live. 

Yes, OAT starts and finishes 
after Go-Live. 

177.  
Page 21 of 112 

(PDF p. 87) 
Section 2.3.7 

Manual Requirements, 
Requirement 85 

Manuals require a Table of Contents.  
However, Requirement 44 does not 
indicate the NCTA review time for Table 
of Contents. 

1. Is the Table of Contents for Manuals 
required as a separate review cycle 
submission?  Or can the Table of 

The Table of Contents shall 
be part of the Preliminary 
Draft submission. 
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Contents be included as part of the 
Preliminary Draft submission? 

 

If a separate Table of Contents submission 

/ review cycle is required, Proposer 

requests the NCTA review period for 

Table of Contents be set to no more than 

5 business day. 

178.  
Page 27 of 40 

(pdf 34) 
3.2 Content of Technical 

Proposal 

F. Proposal Section 4: 
Approach to Project Plan 

and Implementation 

Please clarify which “dates in bold italics” 
are being referred to here. Exhibit A – 
Project Implementation Schedule does not 
include any “bold italics” dates. 

This sentence will be 
removed. An Addendum will 
be issued.  

Key dates are outlined in 
Section 1.3 of Part IV. 

179.  
Pages 1-2 (PDF 

3-4) 
Exhibit A 

Exhibit A – Project 
Implementation Schedule 

To provide the best approach to 
completing the Project, we request 
flexibility concerning the Projected Start 
and Projected End dates shown in the 
Exhibit A – Project Implementation 
Schedule table. 

As long as the Go-Live completion date 

falls within the Sept 2022 – October 2022 

range, and System Acceptance Test falls 

within the Jan 2023 – Feb 2023 range, will 

NCTA allow Proposers to deviate from all 

of the other Projected Start and Projected 

End dates included in this table? 

The Projected dates provided 
in Exhibit A are the no later 
than dates. The Projected Go-
Live date is September 2022. 
The Project Schedule shall 
meet all requirements in 
Exhibit A. 

180.  
Page 27 of 40 

(pdf 34) 

3.2 Content of Technical 
Proposal 

F. Proposal Section 4: 
Approach to Project Plan 

and Implementation 

Based on the nature of this project, we 
request the requirement for resource 
loading be removed. 

No. 
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181.  
Page 27 of 40 

(pdf 34) 

3.2 Content of Technical 
Proposal 

F. Proposal Section 4: 
Approach to Project Plan 

and Implementation 

Will the Contractor be allowed to utilize 
Oracle/Primavera P6 in lieu of Microsoft 
Project for schedule submittals? 

No. 

182.  
Page 27 of 40 

(pdf 34) 
3.2 Content of Technical 

Proposal 

F. Proposal Section 4: 
Approach to Project Plan 

and Implementation 

For pricing and schedule consideration in 
developing our plan to accommodate 
these potential schedule adjustments, can 
NCTA provide a maximum and minimum 
limit to the time period of acceleration or 
delay which Proposer could reasonably 
expect due changes in the active 
construction projects. 

No changes are anticipated in 
the dates now. This could 
change during the project. 

183.  
Page 2 of 40 

(pdf 184) 
1.3 Liquidated Damages 

Liquidated damages indicate “failure to 
complete Commissioning of all lanes…by 
the Factory Acceptance Test milestone.” 

Lanes are not commissioned during 
Factory Acceptance Testing (FAT).  Please 
clarify this liquidated damage requirement. 

Liquidated damages are for 
failure to complete the FAT.  
An Addendum will be issued. 

184.  
Part 1, pages 
22-23 of 40 

D. Proposal Section 2: Key 
Team Qualifications 

Table 1-4: Key Team 
Personnel Roles and 

Commitments 

Table 104 lists the following criteria for 
both the primary and successor “key 
team” members: 
- [ ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express 
Lanes project 

- [ ]% onsite 

- [ ]% on Project 

Can the Authority provide a more precise 
definition for the above criteria? 

% time dedicated to the 
project is based on the time 
allocated for the proposed 
resource divided by the total 
time allocated on the project 
and must be no greater than 
100%. Onsite is time planned 
at the Toll Locations or 
NCTA administrative offices. 

% on Project will be removed.  
An Addendum will be issued. 
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185.  
Part 1, pages 
22-23 of 40 

D. Proposal Section 2: Key 
Team Qualifications 

Table 1-4: Key Team 
Personnel Roles and 

Commitments 

Table -1-4 Key Team Personnel Roles and 
Commitments requires proposers to 
identify the name of a primary resource 
and successor for Project Principal, 
Contractor Project Manager, Technical 
Manager, and Quality Assurance Manager, 
however, the fields for 
Installation/Maintenance Manager and Test 
Manager instead have fields labeled 
“Implementation” and “Maintenance.” 
Please clarify whether a successor is not 
required for these positions, or if the 
fields should actually read “Primary” and 
“Successor”?  

Correct, it should be for 
Primary and Secondary for all 
Key Personnel Roles. An 
Addendum will be issued. 

186.  
Part I, p. 33 of 

40 
4.1 Submission of Technical 

Proposal 

2. Page Presentation. 
Technical Proposal text 
shall be single-spaced, a 
minimum of 12-point Times 
New Roman font, printed 
on both sides of the page. 
Each page header and/or 
footer should include the 
Proposer’s name and 
Technical Proposal section, 
along with page numbers 
and date of the Proposal. 

Supplemental information 
other than the Proposal 
Cover Letter, Executive 
Summary, and Proposal 
response Sections 1 
through 6 may be in a 

Please confirm that while Bidders will use 
12-point Times New Roman font for the 
body text of their responses to the 
Proposal Cover Letter, Executive 
Summary and Sections 1-6, it is 
permissible to use larger or smaller font 
for headers and footers within these 
sections, as well as for requirement text, 
exhibits/figures/graphics, and tables given 
that all text will be readable and no font 
will appear less than 9-point in Times New 
Roman. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 69. 
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different font from that 
specified; however, in no 
case should the font be 
smaller than 9- point and 
Proposers should consider 
the overall readability of the 
document when submitting. 
NCTA will not be 
responsible for reviewing 
portions of proposals with 
illegible text. 

187.  N/A General N/A 

For complex documents like Microsoft 
Project plans and architecture diagrams, 
may Bidders use larger paper folded down 
to 8 ½ X 11 inch size? 

Yes, for drawings in 
Attachments, the Proposers 
may use 11 x 17 size paper. 

188.  19 of 40 
3.2 Content of Technical 

Proposal 

Appendix 1: Audited 
Financial Statements (Two 

Years) 

Given the length of our audited financial 
statements (more than 200 pages), can 
Bidders provide these documents in 
electronic format only? 

No. 

189.  19 of 40 
3.2 Content of Technical 

Proposal 

Appendix 1: Audited 
Financial Statements (Two 

Years) 

Please confirm that one SEC-filed 10K 
financial report that contains financial 
information pertaining to the last 2 or 
more years for our company would be 
meet the requirements of RFP Section 3.2 
as stated.  

Yes. 

190.  
22 of 40 to 24 

of 40 
D. Proposal Section 2: Key 

Team Qualifications, 
 

Please confirm that while qualified 
Successors should be identified for the key 
positions mentioned in Section D. 
Proposal Section 2, that key team 
reference forms are only required for the 

Yes. 
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named primary key personnel within 
proposals. 

191.  19 of 40 
Table 1-3: Proposal Page 

Limitations 

Executive Summary Up to 2 
pages 

Please can NCTA increase the page count 
for the Executive Summary to "up to 3 
pages"? This would allow bidders electing 
to offer the optional image verification 
services additional space to describe those 
services without detracting from the core 
scope of services. 

No change will be made. 

192.  19 of 40 
Table 1-3: Proposal Page 

Limitations. 

Limited to a combined 
total of 20 printed pages 

(excluding all table of 
contents, list of tables, or 

list of figures) and a font of 
12 point. 

Proposal Sections 1-5 require a response 
to a very large portion of requirements 
describing a wide range of subjects, 
including nearly 50 major requirements 
(numbered) and 30 sub-requirements 
(lettered), but are only allotted 20 total 
pages in 12-font Times New Roman font. 
Given the amount of requirements to be 
addressed, would 30 additional pages, for 
a total of 50 pages for Section 1-5 be 
allotted? 

No. 

193.  19 of 40 
Table 1-3: Proposal Page 

Limitations. 

Limited to a total of 50 
printed pages (excluding all 
table of contents, list of 
tables, or list of figures) and 
a font of 12 point. 

The Proposer shall describe 
how it will meet the Scope 
of Work and Requirements 
using the first section level 
sub header (e.g. 6.1). for Part 

Per the answers to questions, Set 1, 
Proposal Section 6 requires a response to 
not only the six numbered requirements, 
but it also requires that proposers 
describe how they will meet the Scope of 
Work and Requirements for more than 
20 separate subjects. Given the wide 
range of subjects discussed, would an 
additional 25 pages be allotted to Section 
6, for a total of 75 pages? 

No. 
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III Scope of Work, Sections 
3-8. 

194.  33 of 40 
4.1 Submission of Technical 

Proposal 

The hard copy of the 
Technical Proposal shall be 
included in one (1) volume 
only so that only one (1) 
three ring binder is 
required for the Technical 
Proposal. Proposers may 
submit Technical Proposal 
Appendices in a separate 
volume or volumes, 
depending upon size of 
documents and personal 
preferences. 

The process of printing/compiling printed 
proposals is a hands-on process that 
requires multiple persons in close 
proximity; no way to social distance. In 
the interest of both sustainability and 
preventing spread of illnesses, please 
consider a change of delivery 
requirements from hard copy to an all-
electronic submission, preferably via email 
or Portal upload.  

No.  

195.  N/A General Contract Term 

The presentation at the pre-bid 
conference indicated a Notice to Proceed 
of February 2021 and a Go Live of 
September 2022 (19 months). The On-
going Operations phase is listed as 
September 1, 2022 thru August 30, 2025 
(3 years). The combination of the 
Implementation period and Operations 
would then be 4 years and 7 months; not 
the 5 years identified elsewhere in the 
presentation. Please clarify. 

The RFP is correct and 
supersedes any discussions 
stated at the Pre-Proposal 
meeting. 
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196.  69 of 112 
5.1.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

NCTA considers Image 
Verification Services as a 
third-party service offering 
that integrates with the 
OBO. The Image 
Verification Services may 
be provided by one or 
more than one service 
provider as additional 
facilities are added to the 
OBO and as determined 
solely by NCTA. 

Will NCTA please clarify? Is the 
requirement to: 1) manually “verify” a 
plate image that has already been 
processed thru some type of Automatic 
License Plate Recognition (ALPR) system 
or 2) utilize a combination of LRP and 
manual review to provide the plate 
information and code? 

 

The Contractor shall utilize a 
combination of LPR and 
manual review to provide the 
plate information and code. 

197.  69 of 112 
5.1.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

# 436 - The Contractor 
shall provide all resources 
and training needed for 
review and processing of 
images throughout the term 
of the Contract. 

Please confirm that Contractor manual 
image review staff is required to be 
located in the continental United States. 

There is no constraint or 
requirement. The Contractor 
shall meet all applicable US 
and North Carolina laws. 

198.  69 of 112 
5.1.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

#437 – The Contractor 
shall provide a disaster 
recovery environment 
(multiple locations) and 
shall expand/reduce 
processing for image 
verification services if 
contracted separately 
from the RTCS and OBO. 

Does the “multiple locations” mean the 
primary and a single disaster recovery 
environment or multiple disaster recovery 
locations? 

A primary and single disaster 
recovery environment is 
compliant. 

199.  70 of 112 
5.1.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

# 439 - The Contractor 
shall provide systems, 
operations and support to 
download, process images 
and maintenance all 
necessary requirement 
throughout the Term of the 
Contract and meets all 

Please confirm that the Contractor will 
retain ownership of all software, hardware 
and facility assets purchased or utilized for 
the Optional Image Verification Services. 

Yes. 
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Performance Requirements 
at all times. 

200.  70 of 112 
5.3.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

# 440 - NCTA desires that 
the Contractor provide out 
of state Registered Owner 
Vehicle information that 
includes name, address and 
phone number of the 
Registered Owner to be 
used for its billing system at 
no additional cost to NCTA 
for the Term of the 
Contract. NCTA may 
provide these services as 
part of its CBOS or may 
procure these services 
separately. For NC plates, 
the Contractor shall use 
NCDMV services provided 
through NCTA. 

The Contractor will undoubtedly incur 
costs for non-North Carolina Registered 
Owner of Vehicle information lookups 
and will need to add this cost to the per 
vehicle cost requested on the price forms. 
Therefore, if the NCTA chooses another 
service provider, the per vehicle Image 
Verification price may include costs not 
incurred by the Contractor. It is suggested 
that a separate cost table (by US state and 
Canadian province) be requested as part 
of Exhibit D- Price Proposal. 

Please confirm that the Contractor will 
not incur any costs for NCDMV plate 
lookups. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 122. 

The Contractor will not incur 
any costs for NCDMV plate 
lookups. 

201.  104 of 112 
7.2.9 Image Verification 
Services – Transaction 

Accuracy 

The Contractor shall 
correctly provide the 
License Plate Number, 
jurisdiction and Plate Type 
for all license plates 
reviewed. The Contractor 
shall process image 
transactions to the existing 
Back Office within 120 
hours after the transaction 
posts to the OBO. This 
includes entering all 
required plate data or 
rejecting the plate if it 

Please confirm if the 120 hours 
requirement includes the time required 
for the additional optional image 
verification services related to Registered 
Owner of Vehicle lookup. 

Yes, 120 hours requirement 
includes the time required for 
the additional optional image 
verification services related to 
Registered Owner of Vehicle 
lookup. 
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meets the criteria to be 
rejected. 

202.  105 of 112 7.2.11 Image Quality 

If the Contractor choses to 
bid on the Image 
Verification Services, the 
Contractor shall be paid for 
image transaction relies 
upon the capture of images 
of sufficient quality for 
image review processing. If 
the image quality is poor, 
image review shall take 
longer, and ultimately, 
images may be rejected. 
The Contractor’s 
performance in this area has 
a direct impact on NCTA’s 
revenue stream. 

It is not clear how Image Quality accuracy 
pertains to the Optional Image 
Verification Services as image quality 
(based on in-lane equipment, etc.) would 
appear to be independent of the optional 
verification service. Will the NCTA please 
clarify? 

Please refer to response in 
Question 151. 

203.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal Sheet 1 Project Summary 

1. Excel rows 10 and 13 both indicate 
Total Maintenance and Operations. 
Please clarify. 

2. Excel Row 13 indicates Total 
Operations when it appears to be the 
total for just the Optional Image 
Verification Services. 
Please clarify. 

It is noted that the amount for the 
Optional Image Verification Services is 
included in the total on Excel row 15 
(Total Implementation, Operations and 
Maintenance Costs). However, a 
Contractor choosing not to bid this 
option would have a lower evaluated total. 

Row 13 will be updated to 
exclude Image verification 
services as this is optional.  
An Addendum will be issued. 
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It is suggested that Optional items are 
removed from the base evaluated total 
and shown below this total. 

204.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal Sheet 2-1 

Note 4 at the bottom, “Single redundant 
zone controller is inclusive of two 
redundant units in the schedules.” 

Please clarify what is meant by “in the 
schedules”. 

“In the schedules” will be 
removed. An Addendum will 
be issued. 

205.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal Sheet 2-1a 

Similar to sheet 10-1, can NCTA please 
add 10-15 blank rows at the bottom for 
additional positions not listed? 

Yes, an Addendum will be 
issued. 

206.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal Sheet 3-1a 

Similar to sheet 10-1, can NCTA please 
add 10-15 blank rows at the bottom for 
additional positions not listed? 

Yes, an Addendum will be 
issued. 

207.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal Sheet 10-1 

Are the hourly rates to be provided on 
rows 5-61 supposed to include the 
overhead (row 2) and profit (row 3)? Or, 
will the provided overhead and profit 
percentages be applied to the rates when 
invoicing? 

Hourly rates do not include 
overhead and profit. Row 2 
and Row 3 include overhead 
and profit. 

208.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal 
Sheet 6-1, Image Review 
Verification Services only 

Costs (Optional) 

For Years 1,2,3, & 5, the price form 
indicates “up to 4 images per vehicle”. 
Year 4 indicates “up to 8 images per 
vehicle”. Can NCTA please clarify the 
difference?  

Yes, please refer to response 
in Question 172. 

209.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal 
Sheet 6-1, Image Review 
Verification Services only 

Costs (Optional) 

Excel row 3 states, “Base Contract Image 
Transaction Processing Costs. However, 
each of the requested cost rows indicates 

Yes, a fully formed toll 
transaction is a single vehicle. 
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“per vehicle”. Please confirm that per 
transaction and per vehicle have the same 
meaning.  

210.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal 
Sheet 6-1, Image Review 
Verification Services only 

Costs (Optional) 

Please confirm that the unit price 
provided in column C is to be blended 
rate of both Automatic License Plate 
Recognition (ALPR) and manual image 
review. If not, please clarify what the unit 
price is to contain. 

Yes, the unit price provided in 
column C is to be blended 
rate of both Automatic 
License Plate Recognition 
(ALPR) and manual image 
review. 

211.  N/A Form D-7 Price Proposal 
Sheet 6-1, Image Review 
Verification Services only 

Costs (Optional) 

Footnote #2 states, “Image Verification 
Services cost per transaction should 
include all costs (e.g. labor, facilities, 
supplies, etc.). “ 

RFP requirement #440 states, “NCTA 
desires that the Contractor provide out of 
state Registered Owner Vehicle 
information that includes name, address 
and phone number of the Registered 
Owner to be used for its billing system at 
no additional cost to NCTA for the Term 
of the Contract. 

Where should Contractor include the 
costs associated with Registered Owner 
of Vehicle lookups? It is suggested that the 
Price Forms contain a separate schedule, 
listing each state and Canadian province, 
for Registered Owner of Vehicle lookup 
costs. 

Yes, the unit price provided in 
column C is to be blended 
rate of both Automatic 
License Plate Recognition 
(ALPR) and manual image 
review. 

 

Please refer to response in 
Question 122 regarding 
question on the costs. 
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212.  
Part I, page 6 

of 40 
1.4 General Overview of 

RTCS Scope of Work 

It is NCTA’s intent to 
procure the Level 1 and 
Level II Maintenance 
Services through a separate 
RFP advertisement in 2022. 
Responsibilities of the Level 
1 and Level II maintenance 
provider will include all 
daily routine respond and 
repair maintenance of the 
RTCS Equipment and 
network, ITS Equipment 
and network, and AVI 
Equipment, and Toll Facility 
infrastructure. The 
Contractor shall be 
responsible for providing 
the proper training and 
coordination with the 
NCTA selected 
maintenance service 
provider. 

Is it the intention of the NCTA to require 
a RACI matrix between the Level III 
maintainer and the Level I/II provider to 
clearly delineate responsibilities and SLA 
accountability? 

Yes, NCTA desires that this 
be provided by the 
Contractor in the 
Maintenance Plan. 

213.  78 of 112 6.2.2.1 

The functions listed in this 
section are categorized as 
Maintenance Requirements. 
The Contractor is 
responsible for Level III 
Maintenance Services but 
must coordinate any 
escalations not resolved by 
the Level 1 and Level II 
maintenance providers. 

Is it the intention of the NCTA that the 
Level III provider will incur the cost of 
rectifying unresolved escalations by the 
Level I/II provider when they are unable to 
provide the corrective action within their 
scope of the level 1/11 provider? 

Level III Maintenance shall 
perform Level III Maintenance.  
If the Level 1 and Level II 
Maintenance service provider 
is not meeting the terms of 
the Contract, NCTA will 
address appropriately. 

214.  89 of 112 Part III, Req #544 
The Contractor and NCTA 
will utilize the ITSM for 
initiating the work orders. 

Will the NCTA provide training on the 
ITSM application and will the Level III 

ITSM is provided by the 
Contractor. Some industry 
providers may refer to their 
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ITSM shall be utilized for 
recording and tracking all 
maintenance and Software 
support services performed 
on the RTCS. Additionally, 
all Equipment provided 
under this Contract shall be 
tracked through ITSM from 
the purchase to their 
disposal 

provider be allowed to integrate the 
MOMS application with ITSM? 

IT service management 
platforms as MOMS. NCTA 
desires to use IT service 
management tools to monitor 
the system and manage 
service tickets. 

215.  69 of 112 Part III, Req #434 

The Contractor shall 
invoice the cost of the 
cloud utility as a Pass-
Through Cost item, six (6) 
months after Go-Live of the 
I-485 Express Lanes. The 
cloud utility shall be 
included in the Contractors 
costs and fully available to 
NCTA and Contractor 
thirty (30) Calendar Days 
prior to the state of the 
FAT. 

Form D-7 Price Proposal, sheet 5-1. 
There are cloud cost and network 
management and ISP fees rows for each 
year in Form D-7 Price Proposal. Please 
confirm what the ISP fees cover. For 
example, does this include the 
communication network costs (network 
operations monitoring, network fees for 
connectivity to the Cloud)? 

Yes, this includes 
communication network costs 
(network operations 
monitoring, network fees for 
connectivity to the Cloud). 

216.  69 of 112 Part III, #431 N/A 

For the required 10 year online OBO 
storage please provide the availability of 
the type of cloud storage required, is this 
a HOT available or Warm available or 
Cold available storage access? Can year 1 
be HOT available and remaining years 
Cold available storage? 

2 years is online (Hot). 
Remaining 8 years is warm or 
cold depending on the 
document as defined during 
the SDDD. 

217.  70 of 112 Part III, #440 N/A 
Please provide the ICD for the CBOS 
DMV lookup. 

This ICD will be provided to 
the selected Contractor. 
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218.  N/A Attachment 5 N/A 

Please provide the ITS equipment part 
numbers and product documentation so 
that the OBO host can be designed to 
interface to these items: 

a. Microwave Radar Detection Station 

b. Toll Rate Signs DMS 

c. Full-Size Walk-In Amber DMS 

d. Wrong Way Detection system 

e. CCTV 

f. CCTV Network Recorder 

ITS part numbers are available 
for the following devices. No 
other information is available 
and approved at this time. 

Type A DMS (Traf Mgmt 
DMS):  Daktronics, Inc. VF-
2020-27X90-66-A GIV 

Type B DMS (TRS 
module):  Daktronics, Inc. 
VM-1020-24x160-20-RGB 

 

219.  72 of 112 Part III, #461 N/A 

Is the TCS vendor required to store all 
the ITS CCTV video on OBO storage 
system, or is storage provided by the 
constructor providing this CCTV video 
system? 

ITS CCTV videos are not 
stored; however Toll system 
overview cameras and 
security camera videos are 
stored. 

220.  34 of 112 Part III, #170 

The Contractor shall be 
responsible for the 
integration of ITS to 
existing tools used by the 
Statewide Traffic 
Operations Center (STOC) 
and the Metrolina Regional 
Transportation 
Management Center 
(MRTMC). 

Please provide a list of existing tools or 
expected tools to be integrated with the 
STOC and MRTMC. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 77.  
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221.  51 of 112 Part III, #290 

The RTCS shall provide 
Automatic License Plate 
Recognition (ALPR) and 
identify license plate 
information, including 
license plate type, 
alphanumeric characters, 
stacked characters, vanity 
plates and jurisdiction of 
origin, to be included in the 
lane transaction message. 

NCTA desires to select a 
sample of image 
transactions that have been 
reviewed and sent to the 
CBOS. The transactions 
should include: 

• The raw images captured 
at the lane, including the toll 
rate sign image, and the 
images selected to be sent 
to CBOS after image 
review. 

• All transaction details 
(transaction ID, 
classification, OCR, plate 
number, jurisdiction, plate 
type, transaction flags, lane 
mode, toll rate). 

• A video clip of the 
transaction should also be 

Is the expectation that RTCS should send 
raw images to CBOS as captured in full 
resolution uncompressed or can the 
RTCS send compressed image with an 
acceptable JPEG quality factor? 

CBOS expects Overview and 
ROI images with an 
acceptable JPEG quality factor, 
compressed or uncompressed 
depends on Contractors 
solution and definition of raw 
images. 
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included, with the system 
log summary. 
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222.  51 of 112 Part III, #290 

The RTCS shall provide 
Automatic License Plate 
Recognition (ALPR) and 
identify license plate 
information, including 
license plate type, 
alphanumeric characters, 
stacked characters, vanity 
plates and jurisdiction of 
origin, to be included in the 
lane transaction message. 

NCTA desires to select a 
sample of image 
transactions that have been 
reviewed and sent to the 
CBOS. The transactions 
should include: 

• The raw images captured 
at the lane, including the toll 
rate sign image, and the 
images selected to be sent 
to CBOS after image 
review. 

• All transaction details 
(transaction ID, 
classification, OCR, plate 
number, jurisdiction, plate 
type, transaction flags, lane 
mode, toll rate). 

• A video clip of the 
transaction should also be 

Please provide the primary and DR CBOS 
location & address. 

NCTA uses a commercial 
cloud service; the address is 
not disclosed by the cloud 
provider. 

The primary cloud instance is 
in ‘US East’ (in Virginia) in the 
design and secondary / DR is 
‘US Central’ (in Illinois). 
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included, with the system 
log summary. 

223.  54 of 112 Part III, #309 

The RTCS shall alert TMC 
personnel via email and SMS 
text message within ten 
(10) seconds (configurable) 
of the vehicle passing 
through the Toll Zone if the 
AVDC system detects the 
vehicle traveling in the 
wrong direction. The RTCS 
shall transmit to the 
MRTMC and STOC a five 
(5) second looping DVAS 
video file of the vehicle, and 
the message shall be 
prominently displayed on 
operators’ video wall or 
monitors. An audio alarm 
shall be received with the 
video message. 

Is STOC & MRTMC expected to review 
and monitor the RTCS application on the 
video wall or is there an API to send texts 
and commands to STOC & MRTMC? If 
there is an API or ICD, please share ICD. 

STOC and MRTMC will 
review the RTCS application.  
No current ICD is available. 

224.  70 of 112 Part III, #440 

NCTA desires that the 
Contractor provide out of 
state Registered Owner 
Vehicle information that 
includes name, address and 
phone number of the 
Registered Owner to be 
used for its billing system at 
no additional cost to NCTA 
for the Term of the 
Contract. NCTA may 
provide these services as 
part of its CBOS or may 
procure these services 

If NCTA decides to share the CBOS DMV 
lookup services, is there any fee 
associated with that service for the out of 
state lookup. 

Some lookup services have 
fees others do not have fees. 
The fee information is not 
available. Proposers shall 
include lookup services if 
desired in its Technical 
Proposal. 
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separately. For NC plates, 
the Contractor shall use 
NCDMV services provided 
through NCTA. 

225.  69 of 112 5.3.11 
5.3.11 Image Verification 

Services (optional) 

Since Image Verification service is 
optional, if the contractor proposed Image 
verification service option is not selected 
by NCTA, the FFT (Fully Formed 
transaction) will be based ALPR only is 
that acceptable? Or is the contractor 
OBO expected to interface with external 
Image review & verification service and 
provide FFT? 

NCTA will procure Image 
Verification Services with this 
Contract or other contracts 
at its discretion. The 
Contractor shall plan for 
Integration with an Image 
Verification Service provided 
by NCTA if it is not proposed 
within this RFP. 

226.  69 of 112 Part III, #435 

The Contractor shall 
provide image verification 
services to return the 
license plate number (LPN), 
jurisdiction and plate type 
for rear license plates. Each 
plate type shall have an 
assigned code, which could 
contain up to three (3) 
digits as agreed to by 
NCTA and the Contractor 
during design. 

Please clarify that the Image Verification 
service includes manual human review and 
DMV integration and lookup also.  

Image Verification service 
includes manual human 
review and automated review.  
DMV integration and lookup 
are optional based on the 
Contractors needs to meet 
the Requirements. 
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227.  N/A 
Proposers Questions and 
NCTA Responses Set #2 

Answer # 19 states, “ 

See question 19. Yes, the 
first 18 months should be 
included in the estimate at 
no cost. There is no overlap 
in the Operations and 
Maintenance Phase with the 
Implementation Phase. 

Please clarify that the reference to “See 
question #19” should read “See question 
#18”. 

Please clarify what is meant by “the first 
18 months should be included in the 
estimate at no cost”. If the first 18 months 
of the contract contain the 
Implementation Period, then those costs 
would be shown as part of the 
Implementation Phase on the price forms. 

Please clarify that as listed on the price 
forms (5, 5-1, 6, 6-1), that the initial O&M 
term of contract is for a full five (5) years 
AFTER Go Live. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 19. 

228.  N/A 
Proposers Questions and 
NCTA Responses Set #2 

Answer # 20 states, “ 

Pass-Through Costs are 
actual costs without markup
and shall Invoiced to NCTA 
during the Operations and 
Maintenance Phase. Please 
include an estimate of the 
anticipated Pass-Through 
Costs in the Pricing Sheet, 
an Addendum will be issued 
to add an additional Pass-
Through Cost section to 
Sheet 3-2. An addendum wil
be issued.  
 

Sheet 5-1 already has a row for cloud 
costs for each of the five (5) base O&M 
periods. Please clarify where the costs for 
cloud services are to be shown as answer 
#20 indicates an addendum will specify 
that they are a “pass-through”. 

We kindly request that cloud services 
provided by the Contractor are not 
treated as a pass through. There are 
Contractor responsibilities for managing 
the cloud infrastructure which should be 
permitted to include markups. 

No change will be made at 
this time. 
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229.  N/A 
Proposers Questions and 
NCTA Responses Set #2 

Answer # 24 states, “ 

The Proposer shall include 
the costs for replacement of
spare parts during the 
Contract term including 
renewals. NCTA will pay for
Spare Parts during the 
Contract Term.  

 

Where on the D-7, Price Proposal price 
forms should the Contractor include the 
estimated costs for annual spares? Sheet 
3-2 states initial spares and there are no 
rows on sheet 5-1 for equipment spares. 

Will the NCTA please clarify how 
additional spares beyond those estimated 
by the Contractor will be paid by NCTA? 

Spares shall be included in 
Sheet 3-2. An Addendum will 
be issued. 

If additional spares are 
identified as needed for the 
Operations and Maintenance 
Phase of the Contract, NCTA 
will work with the 
Contractor to determine the 
additional cost and reflect the 
cost changes in the Contract. 

230.  135 Part III, Req# 431 

The OBO shall be designed 
and sized to handle a 
minimum of 400 million Toll 
Transactions, including 
images, annually with 
storage capacity and 
application performance to 
store 10 years online. 

Please provide the annual traffic volume 
for the I-485 express lanes. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 47. 

231.  8 Attachment #3 N/A 
Please confirm that the RTCS vendor will 
be supplying the roadside cabinets. 

Yes, refer to response to 
Question 27 for additional 
details. 

232.  20 of 40 3.2 C 
Proposal Section 1: Firm 

Qualifications 

Is NCTA able to accept a Firm’s 
international qualifications? Alternatively, 
is NCTA open to accepting Key Personnel 
North American qualifications in lieu of a 
Firm’s North American qualifications? 

The Firm must have North 
American qualifications. Key 
Personnel Qualifications alone 
do not meet the 
Requirements in Part I, 
Section 3.2.C. 

233.  40 of 112 Requirement#197 u) 
4.1.5 RSS Installation 

Requirements 

Please explain the functions of the 
Transaction Status Indicator (TSI) and 
HOV beacon.   

The TSI will be turned on 
when a vehicle does not meet 
the HOV requirement (e.g. 
transponder not in switchable 
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mode, transponder designated 
as HOV). 

234.  41 of 112 Requirement #199 
4.1.6 Operational Back 

Office (OBO) Provisioning 
Requirements 

Confirm that this requirement does not 
supersede requirement #429.  

It does not supersede 
Requirement #429. Please 
refer to response in Question 
83. 

235.  N/A N/A N/A 

Please supply a listing of ITS equipment (if 
any) that the Contractor is responsible for 
providing. (Reference: I-5507: I-485 
Express Lanes - Attachment 5 ITS 
Equipment).  

Attachment 5 is the only 
information available at this 
time. 

236.  50 of 112 Requirement #281 
5.2 RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Please explain the rationale behind the 
requirement.  

Color images are required to 
provide clear designation of 
vehicle. If a Proposer can 
achieve this requirement with 
one image, please describe in 
its Technical Proposal. 

237.  69 of 112 Requirement #429 
5.3.10 Operational Back 

Office (OBO) 

Does NCTA prefer a specific cloud 
provider? 

No. 

238.  69 of 112 Requirement #431 
5.3.10 Operational Back 

Office (OBO) 

This requirement conflicts with 
Requirement # 310 c).  

There is no conflict. 
Requirement 431 is sizing.  
Requirement 310 is data 
management approach.  

239.  96 of 112 
Table 2: RTCS Performance 

Requirements 
7.1 General Performance 

Requirements 

Would NCTA be open to restructuring 
the KPIs to align with the Contractor’s 
system architecture and approved design? 

The KPI’s will not change. 
NCTA will work with the 
Contractor on the formulas 
used to calculate the KPI’s 
using the Contractor system 
and other NCTA data points. 



Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 

 

Page 64 of 107 

# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 

240.  51 of 112 Requirement #290 
5.2 RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

What is the length and resolution of the 
video clip to be sent to the CBOS as part 
of the transaction? “A video clip of the 
transaction should also be included, with 
the system log summary “ 

15 seconds before and after 
the toll transaction of interest 
must be captured. Please note 
that the video clip is to be 
kept in the OBO system log 
summary and not to be 
transferred to the CBOS.   
An Addendum will be issued. 

241.  51 of 112 Requirement #290 
5.2 RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

What is the content of the system log 
summary to be sent to the CBOS as part 
of the transaction?  

The system log summary is to 
be used by NCTA for auditing 
purposes. It shall include the 
transaction data as shared 
with the CBOS. The content 
required for the system log 
summary are described in 
Requirement 290, specifically 
in the bullet points. 

242.  55 of 112 Requirement #316 5.3 General Requirements 

Does this requirement to supply 
equipment extend to third party tools (e.g 
a VNA used by the AVI vendor) or 
proprietary tools not owned by the 
Contractor? 

Yes. 

243.  72 of 112 5.5 
External Interfaces and 

Data Requirements 

With the possibility of multiple third-party 
stakeholders interacting with the OBO, 
what data warehouse governance and data 
security model is envisioned by NCTA? 

The Proposer shall describe 
proposed data warehouse 
governance and data security 
models. Any proposal shall 
meet all Requirements. 
NCTA desires a data 
warehouse structure that 
includes ETL’s, repository 
tools, and data exchange 
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standards as well as analytics 
for Datawarehouse reports. 

244.  16 I Administrative 

While the client is NC Turnpike 
Authority, NCDOT is consistently named 
in the scope of services. For Professional 
Engineering Services – what, if any, DOT 
pre-qualification codes are required for 
this project? 

Proposers shall have a 
minimum qualification to 
provide professional 
engineering Services on the 
project and shall be pre-
qualified in the following 
codes: 

123 -Intelligent 
Transportation Systems 
Design 

97-"Guide Sign Design –
Conventional Roads" 

98 -"Guide Sign Design –
Expressways and Freeways" 

155-Pavement Markings Plans 

541-"Traffic Management Plan 
- Level 1 and 2" 

247- "Traffic Management 
Plan - Level 3 and 4" 

201- Rural Roadway Design 

269 - Urban Roadway Design 

314- Roadway Lighting 

23-Bridges – Spans Over 200’ 

24- Bridges – Spans Under 
200’ 
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143        NBIS Bridge 
Inspection 

319        Load Testing & Finite 
Analysis 

329        Electrical & 
Mechanical Design for 
Moveable Bridge Systems 

444        Load Rating 

486        Structure Durability 
Analysis/Condition 
Assessment 

 

And from Turnpike 

365        Infrastructure/Interfa
ce & Coordination 

366        Toll System Planning 
& Design 

367        Toll Standards 
Development 

368        Toll System RFP 
Development 

369        Toll Operation 
Marketing Strategy 

370        Toll Collection 
Facilities & Equipment 

245.  N/A N/A General 
Can a proposed or current construction 
schedule be provided to align project 

The Contractor is provided 
access to the sites based on 
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schedule and assess potential risks in 
RTCS project delivery? 

the Schedule in Exhibit A. No 
additional information is 
available at this time. 

246.  
Pg. 6 of 40  
(13 of pdf) 

1.4 General 

Additionally, the Contractor shall be 
responsible for the implementation, 
maintenance, and operations of Digital 
Video Audit System (DVAS), Wrong Way 
Vehicle Detection (WWVD), Dynamic 
Pricing System (DPS) calculation and road 
sign display of travel time and pricing 
information.   

Who is responsible to procure, furnish, 
design, test the of Digital Video Audit 
System (DVAS), Wrong Way Vehicle 
Detection (WWVD), Dynamic Pricing 
System (DPS) systems? 

The Contractor is responsible 
for the integration, 
maintenance, and operations 
of DVAS, WWVD, and DPS 
calculation and road sign 
display of travel time and 
pricing information.  

DVAS, WWVD, and TRS are 
design, procured, furnished, 
and tested by the 
Constructor. The Contractor 
shall participate in the 
commissioning tests of these 
devices.  

The Dynamic Pricing System 
(DPS) shall be design, 
procured, and furnished by 
the Contractor.   

Please refer to Attachment 5 
for additional clarification on 
ITS device responsibilities.  

247.  
Pg. 1 of 40 

(8 of pdf) 
N/A 

1.1 Background and 
Purpose 

 

The North Carolina Turnpike Authority 
(NCTA) is requesting written Technical 
and Price Proposals from qualified 
proposing contractors (“Proposers”) 
interested in providing an Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection System (RTCS), 

ITS procurement is shared 
between Contractor and 
Constructor. A list of ITS 
equipment and responsibilities 
are shown in Attachment 5. 
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inclusive of an Intelligent Transportation 
Systems (ITS),   

In later sections it notes, Constructor 
procures and install ITS. Provide 
clarification if RTCS is inclusive of ITS, 
how is it ensured ITS meets RTCS 
requirements, performance requirements 
and system compatibility? 

248.  
Pg 28 of 40 

(35 of pdf) 
Section 3 

Content of Technical 
Proposal 

“Do not include Gantt chart bars in the 
schedule. “  

Can you please confirm the expectation is 
only a task-based schedule in MS Project? 

Yes, NCTA desires to see the 
data and specifically dates 
proposed, and graphics are 
not necessary. 

249.  
Page 38 of 40 

(45 of pdf) 
Part 1 Price Proposal 

As a Best Value contract, price will be 
evaluated based on a combination of 
anticipated cost to NCTA, the overall 
quality of the Technical Proposal, and the 
implementation approach and schedule. 
The pricing will also be viewed in terms of 
any innovation proposed by the bidder as 
well as the bidder’s proven reliability and 
ability to meet the required performance 
standards.   

Please provide the scoring and formula for 
assessing the price proposal. 

The Best Value is described in 
Part I, Section 5. No further 
information is available at this 
time. 

250.  
Pg 3 of 112 

(69 of pdf) 
Section 1.2 Summary of Work 

The RTCS procured under this Contract 
does not include: 

 Installation of ITS elements including 
CCTV cameras, WAN, fiber optic 
network, roadway traffic detectors 

The Contractor shall 
participate in the 
commissioning of all ITS 
devices.  



Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 

 

Page 69 of 107 

# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 

(Express Lanes and general-purpose 
lanes), DMS, and TRS; 

 

Section 3. Constructor Design Support 
states,” Constructor will also be 
responsible for the design, installation and 
testing of ITS.”   

It is recommended the Contractor design, 
procure and test to ensure proper 
equipment is used for the entire RCTS 
system.  

What is in the Constructor contract to 
ensure correct ITS equipment elements 
are installed and protected? Who is 
responsible for warranties and 
replacement? 

The warranty of ITS devices 
provided by the Constructor 
is its responsibility and the 
warranty of ITS devices 
provided by the Contractor is 
its responsibility. Level 1, 
Level II and Level III are 
responsible for maintenance 
of toll equipment and ITS 
devices. 

251.  
Pg 31 of 112 

(97 of pdf) 
3 N/A 

Can you please provide a matrix to help 
identify the NCTA, Constructor and 
Contractor responsibilities for 
construction and operations (power costs 
and fiber damage)? 

Please refer to Table 1-1 in 
Part I for responsibilities. The 
project will be maintained by 
NCTA and NCDOT with 
augmented service providers 
where required. 

252.  
Pg 31 of 112 

(97 of pdf) 
3.1 N/A 

“During installation, the Contractor shall 
provide verification and comment on 
RTCS related elements that the 
Constructor is responsible for installing.” 

Please provide further detail on when and 
how this will be done.  

The Contractor and NCTA 
will work together through 
the project schedule at 
scheduled meetings with the 
Constructor. 
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253.  
Pg 35 of 112 

(101 of pdf) 
3.1.6 N/A 

“The Contractor shall propose a power 
continuity approach and provide portable 
generators to meet all Performance 
Requirements in the Contract.”  

Please clarify Performance Requirements 
for portable generators. 

Generator Requirements are 
provided in several 
Requirements. No additional 
information is available as this 
is specific to the Contractors 
design. 

254.  
Pg. 34 of 112 

(100 of pdf) 
3.1.4 N/A 

“170 The Contractor shall be responsible 
for the integration of ITS to existing tools 
used by the Statewide Traffic Operations 
Center (STOC) and the Metrolina 
Regional Transportation Management 
Center (MRTMC).”  

Please provide additional information on 
what we would need to integrate with, 
such as API or interfaces, or details on 
what may be required, such as camera 
control or VDS data. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 77. 

255.  
Pg 3 of 112 

(69 of pdf) 
1.2 N/A 

ITS shall include the following : integration 
of CCTV, DMS, TRS, MVD; data 
collection for DPS post TT and pricing 
messages; traffic data monitoring and 
reporting.  

Please provide samples of reporting 
desired by NCTA. 

No additional information is 
available at this time. 

256.  
Pg 19 of 112 

(85 of pdf) 
2.3.5.2 Interface Test Plan 

The Contractor shall provide an Interface 
Test Plan (ITP) no later than thirty (30) 
Calendar Days after NTP for all external 
interfaces that shall connect to the NCTA 
systems…”  

The External Interfaces  from 
NCTA are RSS to CBOS as 
provided in Attachment 9.  
This will be the interface to 
the OBO in the future. 
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Please provide the list of external systems 
that need to be integrated. 

No additional ICD’s are 
available at this time. 

257.  
Pg 34 of 112 

(100 of pdf) 
3.1.4 Item 170 

The Contractor shall be responsible for 
the integration of ITS to existing tools 
used by the Statewide Traffic Operations 
Center (STOC) and the Metrolina 
Regional Transportation Management 
Center (MRTMC).   

Please provide the list of the existing tools 
and their uses of the ITS. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 77. 

258.  
Pg 30 of 112 

PDF p. 126 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals 

5.3.4.2 Automatic Vehicle 
Identification (AVI) System 

Integration, Item 347 

Does the AVI vendor require that reader 
installation and tuning be certified by the 
AVI Vendor? If so, will NCTA assume 
responsibility for this certification? 

NCTA will pay for any IAG 
certifications. The Contractor 
is responsible for all 
installation, tuning, testing and 
all work required to meet the 
Performance Requirements. 

259.  

Exhibit C, 
Page 3 of 9 (12 

of pdf) 

 

 

2-1 Backup 
Roadside tab 

Exhibit C - Price Proposal 
Instructions,4.1 Completion 
of the RSS and ITS Cost 
Summary - Sheets 2, 2-1, 2-
1a 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Column A, Column E 

“Sheets 2-1. In the 
columns provided under 
each cost components 
(Items 1 - 9), enter a 
description for each price 
element for each 
component in as much 
detail as space allows.” 

Exhibit C: There are 10 items on the 
Pricing Proposal shown in Column A, 
please clarify if this was a typo or if this 
language only applies to the first 9 items.   It will be 10 items. An 

Addendum will be issued. 

260.  

Form D-7, tab 
2-1 Backup 
Roadside 

(Excel file) 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Column A, Column E 

Yellow-colored cells under 
each list of components. 

Form D-7: Is it expected that each yellow 
background cell under the listed 
components (Column A) should be used 
to describe each component (for instance, 
under Item 1. Redundant Toll Zone 
Controller and In-lane Electronics - there 
are separate rows for Servers, Cable and 

Yes. 



Section A - Official log of Proposers’ questions and NCTA’s responses 

 

Page 72 of 107 

# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 

Connectors.  Should Row 7 be used to 
describe the Servers and Row 8 be used 
to describe the Cable and Connectors?). 
This question would apply to all other tabs 
in the Price Proposal. 

261.  

Form D-7, tab 
3 RTCS Sum 

tab (Excel file) 

 

 

 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 5 
Completion of Operational 
Backoffice System Cost - 
Sheets 3, 3-1, 3-1a, 3-2 

Columns B & D 

“This sheet covers all costs 
associated with the RTCS 
(RSS, OBO and ITS) for the 
I-485 Express Lanes to 
complete the 
implementation, such as 
project management, 
engineering and Design, 
Software and Testing. 

 

Description and Total Cost 
($) columns.” 

Please confirm that Item #1 – “System 
Hardware, Third Party Software, 
Installation and Commissioning not 
Otherwise Covered” should be used to 
show ALL Installation Costs for the 
Project (RSS, OBO, ITS). Yes, confirmed all installation 

costs shall be used here. 

262.  

Form D-7, tab 
4-1 - RSS-ITS 
Maint by year 

(Excel file) 

Exhibit C - Price Proposal 
Instructions, 6 Completion of 
RSS and ITS Maintenance and 

Software Support Services 
COST (Base and Optional 
Extensions) Sheets 4, 4-1, 

and 4-2 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Column D 

Sheet 4-1. This sheet is 
automatically populated 
from Sheets 4-2; it requires 
no input from the Proposer. 

Total Monthly Cost ($) All 
Toll Zone column. 

The 4-1 Tab does not contain any 
formulas so it cannot pull data from the 
Sheet 4-2. Please revise the Instructions 
or the Price Proposal as appropriate. 

Yes. An Addendum will be 
issued. 

263.  

Form D-7, tab 
5-1 - Backup 

RW Sys Maint 
ME 

(Excel file) 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Column A 

Description of Items 
column. 

There are 2 blank rows beneath each Year 
of Maintenance for additional Items. Since 
the pricing spreadsheet is locked, please 
provide direction on how to add items if 
the total exceeds 2. 

NCTA will add additional 
rows in the spreadsheet.  
Proposers can use additional 
space if needed. An 
Addendum will be issued. 
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264.  
Form D-7, tab 
4-2 – Backup 
(Excel file) 

Exhibit C - Price Proposal 
Instructions, 12 Cost 

Escalation 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Column B 

The assumed CPI index for 
evaluation purposes has 
been applied to the 
following Cost Worksheets 
ONLY: 

1. Sheet 4 (including Backup 
sheets 4-1, 4-2) and 

2. Sheet 5 (including Backup 
sheets 5-1) 

Monthly Total ($) column 
(B) 

The 4-2 Tab does not contain any CPI 
formulas as described in Exhibit C. Please 
revise the Instructions or the Price 
Proposal as appropriate. Proposers shall enter  

Monthly total prices in 
Column B. Any CPI 
adjustments shall be made per 
annual period. 

265.  

Form D-7, 
tabs2 -1 
Backup 

Roadside and 
3-1 Backup 

OBO 

(Excel file) 

NCTA I-485 Form D-7 - 
Price Proposal 

2-1 Backup Roadside and 
3-1 Backup OBO 

Both sections of the pricing form ask for 
Dynamic Pricing System and Subsystem 
pricing, the requirements do not 
reference anything on roadside level DPA 
system. Currently the ITS elements that 
would be used for DPA are supplied by 
the Constructor.  

Can you please clarify if there is a 
requirement for DPA at the roadside or if 
there is something separate from the 
OBO DPA line item we should be pricing? 

Depending on Contractors 
solution, the appropriate 
pricing form should be filled 
by subsystems (RSS or OBO).  

266.  

Form D-7, 
tabs 2-1 
Backup 

Roadside and 
3-1 Backup 
OBO (Excel 

file) 

NCTA I-485 Form D-7 - 
Price Proposal 

2-1 Backup Roadside and 
3-1 Backup OBO 

For the Toll Zone Controller, it is listed in 
both Backup Roadside and Backup OBO.  

Is the intent for the Contractor to 
provide just the hardware costs in Backup 
Roadside and the software costs in Backup 
OBO. Please confirm this is the intent? 

Hardware and Software costs 
shall be provided in the 
backup. 
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267.  

Exhibit D-6 

(35 of pdf) 

Part III 
Requirements 

Form D-6 - Requirements 
Conformance Matrix, 
Requirement #168 

The Contractor shall also 
coordinate and be available 
onsite as needed during the 
acceptance test of the ITS 
performed by the 
Constructor and shall be 
responsible for signing off 
that the ITS is performing in 
accordance with the 
Contractor’s Requirements. 

Please provide details and/or data sheets 
on the ITS equipment that will be utilized. 
Will the Constructor be held responsible 
for meeting the KPIs related to this 
equipment? 

Cut sheets and data sheets 
are not available at this time.   
The Constructor will be 
responsible to provide 
equipment in working 
condition in accordance with 
the specifications in 
Attachment 3. 

268.  

Page 33 of 112 
(99 of pdf) 

and 

Page 39 of 112 
(105 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, Item 153 & Item 

197 c) 

“The Constructor will 
procure, furnish, and install 
the conduits between the 
toll Equipment pad and the 
demarcation point on the 
toll gantry…” 

“The Contractor’s 
installation responsibilities 
for the RSS shall include but 
not be limited to:”  

“c) Furnish and install all 
connecting conduit from 
wire ways and conduits 

provided and installed by 
others and/or stubbed out 
conduits to the Equipment 
on the toll gantries. The 
Constructor shall install 

the conduits from the toll 
Equipment pads to the 
foundation of overhead 
structures/toll gantries.” 

According to Item 153, the Constructor 
will procure, furnish, and install the 
conduits between the toll Equipment pad 
and the demarcation point on the toll 
gantry, leaving only the drops from the 
wire trays to devices for the Contractor 
to provide and install. However, Item 197-
c suggests the conduit segment from the 
gantry pad stub outs and up to the wire 
tray is installed by the Contractor. The 
direction in 153 seems more appropriate 
keeping the electrical work contiguous 
from the Equipment pad up to the wire 
tray and solely under the Constructors 
scope. Is 197-c misstated? 

NCTA provided the conduit 
available in Attachment 3- 
Design-Build Plans. 

Any additional conduits 
installed from the pad to the 
toll gantry not shown on the 
plans and that are required by 
the Contractor, shall be 
procured, furnished, and 
installed by the Contractor.  
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269.  
Page 39 of 112 

(105 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, Item 197 d) & 

Item 197 l) 

“Furnish and install all 
wiring for all in-lane 
Equipment and connections 
to the Equipment racks in 
roadside cabinets. This 
includes the proper 
termination of all power, 
communication, and RF 
cables and/or wiring 
(copper or fiber-optic) 
required to connect the 
individual components into 
a fully operational system as 
specified by the 
manufacturer.” 

“Install all NCTA-provided 
AVI readers on the gantries, 
in the toll Equipment pads, 
or at approved NCTA 
locations.” 

Please provide a detailed list of all 
hardware, components, cables, 
connectors, attenuators, wiring and 
enclosures the AVI Vendor will be 
providing for the AVI system with 
installation drawings. Please refer to response in 

Question 138. Depending on 
the Contractor design, NCTA 
can provide an IAG-2 or IAG-
3 readers. The Contractor 
shall describe its design in its 
Technical Proposal. 
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270.  
Page 42 of 112 

(108 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, Item 213 

“Electrical work to be 
performed under this 
Contract shall include, but 
not be limited to the 
following general items of 
work: 

a) provide and install Surge 
Protection Devices (SPD) as 
required to protect all toll 
collection Equipment and 
electronics; 

b) install junction boxes and 
terminate new cable and 
conduit attachment devices, 
where applicable; and 

c) bond all conduits, 
manhole frames, and other 
conductive items to the 
grounding system in 
conformance with the 
NEC.” 

Please confirm that the Constructor will 
be providing and installing the ground 
system and all necessary bonding for the 
work they will be providing. 

Yes. 

271.  
Page 60 of 112 

(126 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, Item 354 

“ ...Classification of vehicles 
traveling on the shoulder 
lanes is not required; 
however, the RTCS shall 
detect vehicles that travel 
on the shoulder and trigger 
the Image Capture & 
Processing System (ICPS).” 

Shoulders can be up to 16’ wide. If no 
equipment is required to monitor the 
shoulder, how can the equipment be 
expected to capture a vehicle driving in a 
16’ wide shoulder? Should the system 
include ALPR camera coverage over the 
full width of the left shoulder? 

Please refer to response in 
Question 139. 

272.  
Attachment 5 

Page 2 

Attachment 5 I-485 RSS & 
ITS Equipment List, ITS 
Equipment List, Item 10 

Ramp Microwave Radar 
Detection Station (1 

sensor per site) 

Please confirm if the Maintenance 
Required by Contractor column for the 
(44) Ramp Microwave Radar Detection 

Yes, Level III Maintenance 
Services is required for 
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Stations should read “Level 3” or “None” 
as indicated? 

Microwave Radar Detection 
Stations. 

273.  
Page 70 of 112 

(136 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, 5.3.11, Item 440 

“NCTA desires that the 
Contractor provide out of 
state Registered Owner 
Vehicle information that 
includes name, address and 
phone number of the 
Registered Owner to be 
used for its billing system at 
no additional cost to NCTA 
for the Term of the 
Contract. NCTA may 
provide these services as 
part of its CBOS or may 
procure these services 
separately. For NC plates, 
the Contractor shall use 
NCDMV services provided 
through NCTA.” 

Please clarify how NCTA plans to make 
registered owner vehicle information 
available to the vendor. 

NCTA is requesting these 
Services from the Contractor.  
NCTA will not make this 
information available to the 
Contractor. 

274.  
Page 40 of 112 

(106 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, 4.1.5 RSS 

Installation Requirements, 
Item 197 u) 

“Transaction Status 
Indicator (TSI) HOV 
indicator beacons for 
Express Lane facilities” 

How many states (or colors) does the TSI 
beacon require? 

One color and it will be 
amber. 

275.  

Form D-7 - 

4 RSS and ITS 
SW and HW 

Maint 

Form D-7 - Price Proposal, 
Optional Extension 2 Costs 

Part IV, Page 1 of 40 - 
Section 1.2 Contract 
Terms, item 3 denotes "The 
Optional Extension Phase 
includes two (2) three (3)-
year optional Maintenance 
extensions to be executed 

The Tab 4, RSS and ITS SW and HW 
Maint of the Price Proposal only allows for 
Years 1 and 2.  A third year should be 
added as Row 18 and the associated links 
to other worksheets should be updated. 

Yes, an Addendum will be 
issued. 
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at the sole discretion of 
NCTA,...". 

276.  
Page 6 of 40 

(13-14 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, 1.4 General 

Overview of RTCS Scope 
of Work 

“It is NCTA’s intent to 
procure the Level 1 and 
Level II Maintenance 
Services through a separate 
RFP advertisement in 2022. 
Responsibilities of the Level 
1 and Level II maintenance 
provider will include all 
daily routine respond and 
repair maintenance of the 
RTCS Equipment and 
network, ITS Equipment 
and network, and AVI 
Equipment, and Toll Facility 
infrastructure. The 
Contractor shall be 
responsible for providing 
the proper training and 
coordination with the 
NCTA selected 
maintenance service 
provider.” 

Will there be a requirement that the 
contractor whom wins the maintenance 
contract have a staff experienced in toll 
equipment maintenance (i.e. Roadside, 
Electrical, ITS, Network, etc.)? 
(assumption in the training section) 

No, the Contractor shall train 
qualified technicians on how 
to perform Level I and Level II 
Maintenance Services. NCTA 
does not anticipate all 
personnel will have prior ITS 
and Tolling experience for the 
Level I and Level II 
Maintenance Services. 

277.  

Form D-6 - 
Requirements 
Conformance 

Matrix, 
Requirement 
#166 & #168 

III Requirements 

“The Contractor shall assist 
NCTA in reviewing all 
aspects of the ITS design 
revisions, construction 
submittals, catalog cuts, 
etc.” 

“The Contractor shall also 
coordinate and be available 
onsite as needed during the 
acceptance test of the ITS 

During the ITS design phase whom will 
make the final decision as to placement, 
locations, mounting heights, structure 
types, etc. of the ITS devices? The Contractor and NCTA, 

Division 10 and NCDOT will 
work together to locate final 
placement of all devices. 
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performed by the 
Constructor and shall be 
responsible for signing off 
that the ITS is performing in 
accordance with the 
Contractor’s 
Requirements.” 

278.  
Page 23 of 112 

(89 of pdf) 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals, Item 95 k) 

“Large-size logic diagrams 
and mechanical assembly 
diagrams do not have to be 
reduced or incorporated 
into the manuals if these 
drawings are provided with 
the manuals and presented 
in a useable and durable 
form.” 

Would PDF files on a thumb drive suffice 
for the drawings in this reference, or is 
the preference for hard copy? One hard copy is required 

per Part I, Section 4.1. No 
change will be made at this 
time. 

279.  N/A 

I-485 Express Lanes 
Roadside Toll Collection 

System Request For 
Proposals 

N/A 

For FAT, please confirm that NCTA or 
the Constructor will provide the AVI 
equipment and the Constructor provided 
ITS equipment.  Will this also include any 
other third party HW, SW or services 
that will be provided by NCTA for the 
SOW defined this RFP? 

Yes. 

280.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) Section 5.3.3 

Requirement 338 states 
“The Contractor shall 
provide at their cost an 
annual information security 
risk assessment to be 
performed by a third-party 
approved by NCTA and in 
consultation with NCDOT 
IT security.  The 
Contractor shall provide 

We request that NCTA provide a list of 
approved third parties to complete the 
annual information security risk 
assessment. This will allow contractors to 
accurately price annual assessment 
services.  Otherwise, will NCTA please 
provide criteria required for approval of 
the third-party assessment provider? 

 

There is not an approved list 
available. Proposers shall 
proposer security assessment 
provider for NCTA review 
and approval. 
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the assessment results to 
NCTA.” 

 

281.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) 
Section 5.3.3 N/A 

To satisfy Section 5.3.3  Requirement 338, 
will contractors need to provide, at their 
cost, an annual information security risk 
assessment to be performed by a third-
party approved by NCTA, that includes a 
NIST 800-37 based Risk Management 
Assessment,  An assessment of the NIST 
800-53 controls identified for the project, 
or both? 

Requirement 338 requires 
compliance to the Statewide 
Information Security Manual 
Risk Assessment Policy, 
Section RA-2.  An Addendum 
will be issued. 

 

The Contractor, and third 
parties supporting the RTCS 
Information Environment, 
shall provide at their own 
cost applicable third-party risk 
assessment reports to NCTA 
that demonstrate the 
Contractor’s compliance. 

282.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) 
Section 5.3.3 N/A 

Does 5.3.3 Requirement 338 require 
annual FISMA NIST-800-53 audit and 
attestation.  Otherwise can NCTA specify 
what form of annual information security 
risk assessment is required? 

See Response to Question 
281. 

283.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) 
Section 5.3.3 N/A 

Will NCTA permit portions of the system 
that do not store, process, transfer, or 
communication Restricted or Highly 
Restricted data, to utilize Low baseline 
NIST 800-53 controls? 

Proposers shall describe the 
proposed approach in the 
Technical Proposal. NCTA 
will work with NCDIT to 
consider separation of 
Restricted and Highly 
Restricted data. 

284.  Page 58 of 112 Section 5.3.3 The NCDIT Security 
Assessment and 

Does NCDIT consider this system to 
contain Restricted or Highly Restricted 

See Response to Question 
281. 
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(124 of pdf) Authorization Policy states 

in section CA-8 that 
penetration testing is 
required at least annually 
for systems containing 
Restricted or Highly 
Restricted data. 

data?  Will NCDIT provide the annual 
penetration test, or shall this be included 
in annual information security risk 
assessment specified in Section 5.3.3 
Requirement 338? 

NCTA considers the systems 
to be Highly Restricted. 

The Contractor, and third 
parties supporting the RTCS 
Information Environment, 
shall provide at their own 
cost applicable third-party risk 
assessment reports to NCTA 
that demonstrate the 
Contractor’s compliance and 
provide its own annual 
penetration test. 

285.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) 
Section 5.3.3   

Section 5.3.3 requirement 
328 states that the 
Contractor shall meet the 
following requirements 
where applicable …. NCTA 
Policies, Standards, 
guidelines, and Procedures.   

Can a link to the NCTA Policies, 
Standards, Guidelines and Procedure be 
provided? 

NCTA provided all available 
Policies, Standards, Guidelines 
and Procedures in the RFP 
Attachments. 

286.  
Page 58 of 112 

(124 of pdf) 
Section 5.3.3 Requirement 333 and 336. 

Does NCTA maintain a list of approved 
vulnerability assessment, anti-malware, and 
instruction detection products? Or can 
Contractors propose these products at 
their discretion? 

Proposers shall propose 
products for NCTA/NCDOT 
consideration. 

287.  
Page 19 of 40 

(26 of pdf) 
Section 3.2., Table 1-3 Page limitations 

Can proposers use 11x17 “tabloid” pages 
and if so, will they count as two pages 
(each side is one page)? 

No, with one exception. 
Drawings provided as an 
attachment may be provided 
on 11x17. 

Each side of the page is 
considered one page. If the 
Proposer uses two sides of 
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the paper, this is counted as 
two pages. 

288.  
Page 19 of 40 

(26 of pdf) 
Section 3.2., Table 1-3 Page limitations 

Can proposers use a horizontal page 
layout (11 wide x 8.5 tall) rather than a 
portrait layout (8.5 wide x 11 tall)? 

Yes. 

289.  
Page 19 of 40 

(26 of pdf) 
Section 3.2., Table 1-3 Page limitations 

Page Limitations lists a 20 page limit for 
Sections 1-5 and a 50-page limit for 
Section 6. Page 40 of the RFP indicates 
that hard copy proposals should be 
“printed on both sides of the page.” Shall 
proposers interpret this to mean that one 
printed page = two pages total since both 
sides of the paper will be printed? If so, 
does that mean that the total page limit 
(or, to put it another way, the page limit 
on the digital, non-printed versions of the 
proposal) should be 40 pages for Sections 
1-5 and 100 pages for Section 6? 

No, each side of the page is 
considered one page. If the 
Proposer uses two sides of 
the paper, this is counted as 
two pages. 

290.  
Page 19 of 40 

(26 of pdf) 
Section 3.2., Table 1-3 Page limitations 

NCTA’s response to question 16 in 
Proposer Questions and NCTA 
Responses Set 2 says, “As stated on page 
30, “The Proposer shall describe how it 
will meet the Scope of Work and 
Requirements using the first section level 
sub header (e.g. 6.1). for Part III Scope of 
Work, Sections 3-8.” However, this text 
does not appear on p. 30. The quoted text 
appears in Table 1-3 as instructions for 
Section 6 but is not included in the 
instructions for Section 6 on page 30. 
Please clarify the contradiction between 

All Technical Proposal shall 
include all scope as defined in 
Part 1, Section 3.2 of the RFP. 
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the Section 6 instructions provided on p. 
30 and the Section 6 instructions provided 
in Table 1-3. 

291.  
Page 19 of 40 

(26 of pdf) 
Section 3.2., Table 1-3 Page limitations 

Page Limitations indicates that proposers 
should use section 6 to, “describe how it 
will meet the Scope of Work and 
Requirements using the first section level 
sub-header (e.g. 6.1) for Part III Scope of 
Work, Sections 3-8.” However, Section III 
Scope of Work and Requirements appears 
to include 7 first section level sub-headers 
(1. Scope of Work Overview-7. 
Performance Requirements – Maintenance 
and Operations). Please confirm if the 
reference to sections 3-8 was printed in 
error and provide updated instructions if 
so. 

Please refer to response in 
Question 17. 

292.  
Page 3 of 40 

(10 of pdf) 
1.2 Summary Scope of Work 

The Contractor shall provide RTCS design 
specifications to the Constructor and shall 
be required to review the engineering 
design (currently almost complete), 
provide feedback, and identify potential 
impacts to the RTCS installation and 
performance.  

If changes are required to the design, how 
will it be resolved after the fact if the 
construction is currently almost complete? 

The Proposer shall identify 
any concerns with the design 
provided in Attachment 3.  
Further, the Proposers shall 
document all assumptions 
with its proposed solution 
based on the design drawings 
provided in Attachment 3. 

293.  
Part IV page 

35 
3.7.14.2 

Limitation of Contractor’s 
Liability 

Will NCTA consider providing a liability 
cap limit of one times (1x) the value of the 
contract?  

No. 
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294.  
Part IV page 

36 

3.7.15 

 

3.7.16 

 

Contractor’s liability for 
Injury. 

 

 

General Indemnity 

Will NCTA either provide a definition of 
“Agents” or remove “Agents” from each 
of these sections. 
 
As is, Contractor has no way of 
ascertaining who “Agents” are or what is 
the risk allocation for holding them 
harmless etc. 

Agents is an undefined term 
and shall have its common 
and ordinary meaning in this 
RFP.   

 

295.  
Part IV page 

38 
3.7.28 Force Majeure 

Will NCTA consider epidemics or 
government orders a force majeure event?  
There is currently a lot of uncertainty 
associated with COVID-19.  Contractor 
requests clarity on how NCTA will treat 
delays related to said event if the Gov. 
makes decisions out of either party’s 
control.  

No. 

296.  Part IV page 1 N/A N/A 

The RFP provides for Standard Special 
Provisions in Appendix A. Will NCTA 
provide bidders with any sample of final 
contract? 

The Contract is a confirmed 
RFP with all completed 
Exhibits, Attachments by the 
successful Contractor. 

297.  
Part IV page 

11 

Terms and Condition 

1st § of Section I.7.2 
Scope of License 

Please confirm that the license being 
granted to NCTA and the rights attached 
thereto (those referred to in 1-6) shall 
only be valid in connection with the 
Services to be provided to NCTA by 
Contractor. 

Yes. 

298.  
Part IV page 

38 

Terms and Condition, 
Section 3.7.27 

 

Force Majeure 

 

Section 3.7.27 states that “Force Majeure 
1. Neither party shall be deemed to be in 
default of its obligations hereunder if and 
so long as it is prevented from performing 
such obligations as a result of events 

No change will be made. 
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beyond its reasonable control, including 
without limitation, fire, power failures, any 
act of war, hostile foreign action, nuclear 
explosion, riot, strikes or failures or 
refusals to perform under subcontracts, 
civil insurrection, earthquake, hurricane, 
tornado, or other catastrophic natural 
event or act of God. Force Majeure 
events shall not otherwise limit NCTA's 
rights to enforce contracts.” 

Contractor requests that “Force Majeure” 
as referenced in the RFP includes 
epidemics and/or quarantine restrictions. 
Contractor also requests confirmation 
that Contractor will be eligible for 
equitable adjustments in Project Schedule 
and Contract Price related to delays and 
impacts caused by said events, and other 
Force Majeure events. 

299.  Part III page 59 
5.1. NCTA Business Policies 
and Operational Concepts 

Requirement 346 

Requirement 346 informs that the 
Constructor will supply a battery backup 
of 30min on the TRS. 

But on requirement 275 is referred that 
the RTCS TRS shall store the rates using 
local power for a minimum of two (2) 
hours if externally sourced power is lost. 

Will the Constructor provide the power 
backup only for 30min, and the TRS 
supplied will already have a solution to 
hold the information up to 2 hours? Or 

The Contractor shall provide 
additional power backup 
system in order to source 2 
hours of the system if 
externally sourced power is 
lost. 
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should the Contractor provide the extra 
power backup system?  

300.  
Part III, Page 

69 of 112 
5.3.10 Operational Back 

Office (OBO) 
Requirement 431 

Requirement 431 states that “The OBO 
shall be designed and sized to handle a 
minimum of 400 million Toll Transactions, 
including images, annually with storage 
capacity and application performance to 
store 10 years online.” Requirement 310, 
however, states that the OBO shall store 
data online for 2 years as well as 10 years 
of archived data. Can you please clarify for 
how long the OBO shall store data online 
and what constitutes online storage?  

NCTA has chosen a cloud 
infrastructure for the OBO to 
scale as required. The 
Proposer shall provide an 
explanation of its data 
management plan to maintain 
data available for the toll 
collection system including 
images for 2 years and the 
ability to archive and retrieve 
10 years of data. Online 
means immediately available 
for the Customer Service 
application and data analytics 
including reporting and real 
time business access. 

301.  

Part III, Page 
69 of 112 

 

5.3.10 Operational Back 
Office (OBO) 

 

Requirement 431 

 

How many images are expected to be 
associated to a single transaction?  What 
is the average size of one image?  

For the RFP, please use the 
Proposers transaction size 
and assume up to 4 images 
per transaction at the same. 

302.  
Part III, Page 

70 of 112 
5.3.11Image Verification 

Services (optional) 
Requirement 440 

NCTA includes providing the out-of-state 
and in-state Registered Owner Vehicle 
information in the scope of the Image 
Verification Services, which are optional. 
Please confirm whether the Contractor by 
choosing not to deliver Image Verification 
Services, also chooses not to deliver out-
of-state and in-state license plate lookup?    

Lookup services during the 
operating period are optional. 
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303.  Part I, page 13 1.28 Insurance Requirements 

It is required to obtain the insurance 
coverages ahead of an award? Or a letter 
from the insurance company submitted 
with the proposal stating that in the event 
of an award the requested insurance 
coverages will be met is enough?     

Yes, a letter from the 
insurance company stating in 
the event of an award the 
requested insurance covered 
is enough. 

304.  Part I, page 39 Bonding Requirements Bid Bond 

Bid Bond information is provided in 6. 
Award and Execution of Contract. 
Therefore, even though it is stated that 
proposer shall submit with its Price 
Proposal a bid bond, a letter stating that 
the bid bond will be obtained in the 
contract award is enough. Is this right?  

Yes. 

305.  
Part III, page 

80 
6.2.5 

RTCS Hardware 
Maintenance and Software 

Support Services 

It is required to monitor and troubleshoot 
detected problems, but the resolution 
could be attained by the intervention of 
Level I and/or Level II Maintenance teams. 
Should the Contractor fully control the 
activities performed by Level I and/or 
Level II in all situations or only on 
escalated situations? I other words, should 
the Contract perform a full control of all 
maintenance activities of all teams? 

The Contractor is responsible 
for escalated scenarios for 
Level III Maintenance. 

306.  
Part III, page 

89 
6.2.12 

Recording of Maintenance 
Activities 

The Contractor and NCTA will utilize the 
ITSM for initiating the work orders. ITSM 
shall be utilized for recording and tracking 
all maintenance and Software support 
services performed on the RTCS. 
Additionally, all Equipment provided under 

The Contractor shall provide 
ITSM for use on this Contract 
by the Contractor, Level 1 
and Level 2 Maintenance 
vendors, NCTA and its 
agents. 
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this Contract shall be tracked through 
ITSM from the purchase to their disposal. 

Is this ITSM to be supplied under this 
contract or is an already existing NCTS’ 
system to be used? 

307.  126 5.3.4.2 
Automatic Vehicle 

Identification (AVI) System 
Integration 

Kapsch has indicated that the tuning of the 
system must be performed by them to 
remain IAG-compliant.   
Will NCTA include purchase of Kapsch 
tuning services with the reader 
procurement? 

NCTA will pay for and 
provide AVI reader and 
antenna. All costs associated 
with tuning and 
commissioning the lanes shall 
be paid for by the Contractor.  
NCTA has retained the AVI 
vendor services for Level III 
support. 

308.  120 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify where 
will the constructor WWV detectors be 
placed?  

The location will be field 
verified with the Constructor 
and NCTA. The exact 
locations will be made 
available to the Contractor 
when available during the 
Implementation Phase.  
However, for reference see 
“I-5507: I-485 Express Lanes 
Tolling, ITS and Signing 
Schematic” in Attachment 3. 

309.  117 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify how are 
multiple transponders per vehicle are to 
be handled? 

Please refer to Requirement 
284 and Part I, Section 3.2. H, 
14.b. 

NCTA requests that 
Proposers describe current 
logic for handling multiple 
transponders in a vehicle.   
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NCTA will work with the 
Contractor to finalize this 
during the design. 

310.  117 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

This requirement appears to conflict with 
requirement 286 to flush other tags. Will 
the Authority please clarify? 

The Proposer did not provide 
a requirement reference. All 
transponders shall be read. 
The Contractor shall assign 
the correct transponder with 
the correct vehicle. 

311.  116 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify if the 
plate patch images can be monochrome, 
or if they need to be color?   
Do the images need to be color at night? 

Plate patches is not a term 
used in the RFP. Assuming 
that the plate patch is the 
region of interest (ROI), the 
ROI shall be color. Yes, all 
images shall be color. 

312.  116 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify if display 
must be for 2 hours, or just store the 
data? 

The Proposer did not provide 
a reference to a requirement 
and question is unclear as 
there is no 2-hour reference 
on Page 116. 

313.  115 5.2 
RTCS – Functional 

Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify if images 
need to be color at night?  What will be 
the light level at night? 

Yes, if the Proposer requires 
additional lighting to meet the 
Requirements, please include 
this in your Technical and 
Price Proposals. 

314.  106 4.1.5 
RSS Installation 
Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify who will 
pay for Kapsch lane commissioning? Please 
also see question #3. 

NCTA will pay for and 
provide AVI reader and 
antenna. All costs associated 
with tuning and 
commissioning the lanes shall 
be paid for by the Contractor.  
NCTA has retained the AVI 
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vendor services for Level III 
support and IAG certification.  

315.  105 4.1.5 
RSS Installation 
Requirements 

Will the Authority please clarify who will 
provide the cabinets? 

Please refer to response in 
Question 27. 

316.  130 5.3.7.4 
Revenue Class (NCTA 

Class) 

What accuracy level is acceptable to 
NCTA on inferred additional axle rating? 

Extended Vehicles shall meet 
the same performance 
requirements for all other 
vehicle classifications as 
outlined in Requirement 355. 

317.  130 5.3.7.4 
Revenue Class (NCTA 

Class) 

Given NCTA has requested that we use 
dimensions of the vehicle to infer axles, 
how would the integrator determine the 
additional rated extra axles at an accurate 
enforceable confidence? 

Please refer to Requirement 
355. The Requirement 
provides a single classification 
for Extended Vehicles.  
Proposers shall use this 
classification scheme to 
propose a solution. 

318.  37 3.2 
Content of Technical 

Proposal 

Will the Authority please confirm if 
exceptions to the T&C’s are to be 
included in the 50 page limit in the Section 
6 portion of the proposal, which also 
includes SOW adherence? 

Yes. 

319.  29 3.2 
Content of Technical 

Proposal 

Assigning a full time backup to every role 
would burden the project with 
unnecessary costs. Will the  Authority 
please confirm that the successor/backup 
can be another project team member, 
serving a different project role on the Org 
Chart, or  a person currently serving on a 
different project, with no expectation of 
filling the successor role at full time? 

NCTA expects all 
Contractors to have 
succession plans to ensure 
projects will continue if 
personnel leaves, which 
happens very often on these 
projects. 

However, please refer to the 
answer to Question 17. Only 
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names for the successor is 
necessary. 

320.  13 1.4 
General Overview of 
RTCS Scope of Work 

Will the Authority please clarify if the 
contractor is responsible for maintenance 
as described in 1.4, paragraph 1, or if 
maintenance will be separately procured 
by NCTA as detailed in 1.4 paragraph 2.  

The Contractor is responsible 
to provide the Maintenance 
Plan that includes corrective, 
preventative and predictive (if 
necessary) Maintenance 
Services. The Contractor shall 
provide Level III Maintenance 
Services.   

321.  73 2.1.2 Staffing and Key Personnel 

Is the contractor expected to have a 
maintenance manager on site during the 
maintenance phase?  
Or will maintenance service be procures 
separately as described in Section1.4 
paragraph 2. (Please also see question 17.) 

No, it is not required to have 
personnel on site during the 
Operations and Maintenance 
Phase. Level 1 and Level II 
Maintenance Services will 
provide onsite personnel. 

322.  151 6.2.7.1 Preventive Maintenance 

Can the Authority please confirm that 
Preventive maintenance shall be scheduled 
by Contractor during the maintenance 
phase? Is this requirement per section 1.4, 
paragraph 2? 

Yes, but Preventative 
Maintenance will be 
performed by Level 1 and 
Level 2 vendors. The 
Contractor is responsible to 
provide the Maintenance Plan 
that includes corrective, 
preventative and predictive (if 
necessary) Maintenance 
Services. The Contractor shall 
provide Level III Maintenance 
Services.   

323.  N/A N/A 
6.2.7 Types of 
Maintenance 

Can the Authority please clarify if all of 
the requirements in section 6.2.7 Types of 
Maintenance are only applicable to 

Yes. 
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maintenance services to be procured by 
NCTA, per Section 1.4, paragraph 2. 

324.  N/A N/A MOTs during Installation 

Will the roadway be closed to the public 
during installation or will MOT be 
required? 

Yes, the Express Lanes will be 
closed to the public during 
the installation. If the 
Proposer requires additional 
general-purpose lanes 
closures during the 
Installation Phase, the 
Proposer shall describe this in 
its Proposal and shall include 
any costs to plan, implement, 
remove all MOT during this 
phase. The cost shall also 
include design and coordinate 
with NCTA, NCDOT and 
other stakeholders. 

325.  68 Part III 
1.2 Summary of Scope of 

Work 

Will the Authority consider 
implementation of some of the DPS and 
facility server functionality described for 
the RSS in the cloud instead of the at the 
toll location, assuming the same level of 
services? Some of the functionalities 
benefit from being centralized and not 
restricted to data available from the toll 
location only. 
E.g. rate for trip based DPS cannot 
calculate locally because it requires the 
correlation of events occurring in different 
tolling locations. 

Yes, Proposers may offer 
solutions where all or some 
of the DPS and facility server 
functionality described for the 
RSS in the cloud instead of 
the at the toll location, 
assuming the same level of 
Services and all Requirements 
are met. NCTA desires to 
use existing commercial 
systems where possible. 

326.  40 4.1 
Submission of Technical 

Proposal 

Can the Authority please confirm that it 
expects to receive a total of: 
•  three binders (1 technical and 1 price 

Yes. The stated assumptions 
in the question are correct. 
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original, 1 price copy), and  
•  seven USBs (1 redacted technical; 5 
technical copies, including conformance 
matrix; 1 price) 
 
Can the Authority please clarify "The copy 
with the original cover letter and cover sheet 
should be marked “Original”. Each copy shall 
be numbered (e.g., 2 of 7, 3 of 7)." which 
appears to be in conflict with 4.1 1.a  "The 
hard copy of the Technical Proposal shall be 
included in one (1) volume only so that only 
one (1) three ring binder is required for the 
Technical Proposal." 

327.  
64 

 

5.3.7.4 

 

Revenue Class (NCTA 
Class) 

Is inferred the same as 'inserted' - the 
process by which an AVC system inserts 
one or more axles into locations that 
make logical sense given the profile of the 
vehicle. 
 
For example, (in a system with axle 
detection sensors) if the AVC system 
detects a vehicle that has a profile 
indicative of a car, but the axle detection 
system only detects a single axle then the 
AVC system would insert an axle in the 
appropriate area. 

Yes, inferred is the same as 
inserted. 

328.  

Part IV page 
11 

(Page 193 of 
pdf) 

1.7.1 (iii) Description of License 

Will NCTA consider removing the ability 
“to distribute and display copies, 
reproductions, and derivative works of 
the software”?  These requests are not 

No, no change will be made. 
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# Page Section Section Description Proposer Question NCTA Response 

associated with what is necessary for 
NCTA to use or operate the system. 

329.  

Part IV page 
11 

(Page 193 of 
pdf) 

1.7.2 Scope of License 

Will NCTA consider removing “The 
license shall permit NCTA to add at any 
time, entities, or persons to receive 
Contractor Services with no additional 
license fees charged to NCTA”?  

No, no change will be made. 

330.  

Part IV, page 
12 

(Page 194 of 
pdf) 

1.7.2 Last Paragraph 

Request that derivatives works are 
included in pre-existing contractor 
software and shall remain in the property 
of the Contractor (subject to the license 
agreement). 

No, no change will be made. 

331.  

Part IV, page 
13 

(Page 195 of 
pdf) 

1.7.3.3 
Payment of Costs for 

Escrow 

Will NCTA consider removing “The 
Contractor’s obligation to maintain the 
escrow in place shall continue after the 
expiration or termination of the Contract 
Term until the Contractor receives 
Notice from NCTA that the escrow is no 
longer required pursuant to paragraph 5 
below, Release of Escrow Deposits”? 

No, no change will be made. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section B – Official revisions to the I-485 Express Lanes Roadside Toll Collection 
System RFP 

Page 95 of 107 

REVISIONS: Following are the revisions to the RFP documents (Deletions are shown in red 
text strikeout mode and additions are in red text and underlined)   

1. Part I Administrative, Section 2 Schedule, Table 1-2: Procurement Schedule has been modified as 
follows:  

Table I-2: Procurement Schedule 

Milestone Date 

RFP Issued August 20, 2020 

Mandatory Pre-Proposal Scope of Services Meeting 

August 31, 2020 (1:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m. EDT). 
 

Interested parties are required to email the NCTA contact 
noted in Part I, Administrative, Section 1.6, to register for 

the meeting. Due to COVID-19, the meeting will be held online 
via web conference. The meeting may be recorded by NCTA 

and all attendees must state name so the company may be 
counted present. See further details below. 

Proposer Questions Due September 22 29, 2020 (4:00 p.m. EDT) 

NCTA Inquiry Responses and Addendum (if 
required) Issued October 6 9, 2020 

Proposals (Technical and Price) Due November 10, 2020 (4:00 p.m. EDT) 

Notification of Proposers Shortlisted for Oral 
Presentations December 4, 2020 

Oral Presentations (Proposers to be notified as to 
the specific schedule within the time period 
identified) 

Week of December 14, 2020 

Ranking of Proposers for Negotiations January 12, 2021 

Notice to Proceed / Award of Contract February 2021 
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2. Part I Administrative, Section 3.2 Content of Technical Proposal, Table 1-3: Proposal Page 
Limitations has been modified as follows:  

Table 1-3: Proposal Page Limitations 

Proposal Sections to be Completed 
by a Proposer 

Page Count Limitations 

Cover Letter Up to 2 pages 

Executive Summary Up to 2 pages 

Section 1: Firm Qualifications 

 

Limited to a combined total of 20 
printed pages (excluding all table of 
contents, list of tables, or list of 
figures) and a font of 12 point. 

Section 2: Key Team Qualifications 

Section 3: Approach to Scope of Work 
and Requirements 
Section 4: Approach to Project Plan and 
Implementation 
Section 5: Approach to Operations and 
Maintenance 

Section 6: Adherence to the Scope of 
Work and Requirements, Terms and 
Conditions and Requirements 
Conformance Matrix 

Limited to a total of 50 printed pages 
(excluding all table of contents, list of 
tables, or list of figures) and a font of 
12 point. 
 
The Proposer shall describe how it will 
meet the Scope of Work and 
Requirements using the first section 
level sub header (e.g. 6.1). for Part III 
Scope of Work, Sections 3-87. 

Section 7: Forms & Submittals No limitations 

Price Proposal No limitations 

Appendix 1: Audited Financial 
Statements (Two Years) 

No limitations 

Appendix 2: Preliminary Bill of Materials 
(BOM) 

No limitations 

Appendix 3: Sample Reports No limitations 

3. Part I Administrative, Section 3.2.C Firm Qualifications, subsection 2.a. – Change “AET and 
Express Lanes” to “AET or Express Lanes”, as follows:  

a. Completed, in the last five (5) calendar years, at least one (1) project working in 
AET and or Express Lanes with AVI and image-based tolling in North America;  
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4. Part I Administrative, Section 3.2 Content of Technical Proposal, Table 1-4: Key Team Personnel 
Roles and Commitments has been modified as follows: 

Table 1-4: Key Team Personnel Roles and Commitments 

Project Principal: 

Primary Successor 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project	

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project 

Contractor Project Manager: 

Primary Successor 

[  ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project 	

[  ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project 

[   ]% onsite 

[  ]% on Project 

Technical Manager: 

Primary Successor 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project  

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project 

Installation/Maintenance Manager: 

Implementation Primary Maintenance Successor 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project  

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project  

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project 

Quality Assurance Manager: 

Primary Successor 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

[   ]% onsite 

[   ]% on Project  

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project  

[   ]% onsite 
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[   ]% on Project 

Test Manager: 

Implementation Primary Maintenance Successor 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes project 

 [   ]% onsite 

[  ]% on Project 

[   ]% time dedicated to the I-485 Express Lanes 
project 

[   ]% onsite 

[  ]% on Project 

5. Part I Administrative, Section 3.2.E Proposal Section 3: Approach to Scope of Work and 
Requirements, item #2 has been modified as follows: 

2. Discuss the Proposer’s technical approach to providing optimal performance for toll 
system Equipment while meeting the Performance Requirements as specified in Part III, 
Scope of Work and Requirements. Provide drawings identifying where the equipment 
will be located on the Project including through the Toll Zone, and Toll Rate Sign (TRS). 
In addition, wherever possible, provide supporting drawings to explain the equipment 
layouts and any additional MVD sensor spacing using the Attachments provided in Part 
III, Scope of Work and Requirements. Drawings shall be provided as an Appendix 
and not counted towards the Technical Proposal page limitation. 

6. Part I Administrative, Section 3.2.F Proposal Section 4: Approach to Project Plan and 
Implementation has been modified as follows: 

NCTA has established milestone dates for the Project that are subject to change at the sole 
determination of NCTA. These milestones are provided in Exhibit A, Project Implementation 
Schedule. This list of milestones is not intended to include all Project milestones of the 
Project, but to present planned major milestones to allow the Proposer sufficient detail to 
develop a meaningful Preliminary Project Implementation Schedule as a part of its Proposal. 
Proposers may identify certain interim milestones on the Project Schedule; however, it is 
critical that the milestone dates in bold italics are achieved on the dates shown in the 
schedule. 

7. Part I Administrative, Section 6.1 Notification of Award, subsection 1.a. and subsection 1.c. have 
been modified as follows:  

1. Payment and Performance Bonds: 

a. Proposer shall submit evidence that it is capable of obtaining Contract payment and 
performance bonds in an amount equal to 100 percent of the Contract Proposal Price for 
the Implementation Phase and for one year of Operations and Maintenance as further set 
forth in the paragraphs immediately below. The Operations and Maintenance Phase 
commence following the completion of the Implementation Phase. A surety letter 
submitted with the Proposal is acceptable evidence of meeting this bond requirement. 
The form for this letter is included as Exhibit D-10, Forms. The completed letter shall 
be included in the Technical Proposal Section 7. 
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c. Bonding shall be continuous in that the Operations and Maintenance Bond associated with 
the I-485 Express Lanes project must be provided prior to the release of the 
Implementation Phase Bond for that roadway. The initial bonding level for the Operations 
and Maintenance Phase shall be provided at 100 percent of Year 1 of Operations and 
Maintenance. For purposes of the Surety Commitment (Exhibit D-10, Forms) bonding 
levels are as shown in Sheet 1 NCTA I-485 Express Lanes RTCS Project Summary Grand 
Total for Operations and Maintenance (cell C1413) and may be annually renewable, to be 
renewed each year at the anniversary date of Final Acceptance through the end of the 
Contract. The value of the bond for each year beyond Year I shall be in the amount of 
100 percent of the estimated Operations and Maintenance Costs for the upcoming 
Operations and Maintenance Year.  

8. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 2.3.5.2 Interface Test Plan, Requirement 71 
has been removed:  

71 For OIT and SIT, NCTA will provide interfaces that complete end-to-end testing scenarios 
during both tests. NCTA participation in the OIT and SIT end-to-end testing requires all 
elements of information from the FAT to be available in accordance with the Project Schedule. 
Any such deviation of this schedule or incomplete data may impact NCTA readiness of its 
interfaces during the OIT or SIT. (REQUIREMENT DELETED).  

 

9. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 5.2 RTCS - Functional Requirements, 
Requirement 281 has been modified as follows:  

281 
The RTCS shall capture at least two one rear unique color images of the vehicle and its license 
plates for every vehicle that passes through a toll lane or Toll Zone. 

10. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 5.2 RTCS - Functional Requirements, 
Requirement 290 has been modified as follows:  

290 The RTCS shall provide Automatic License Plate Recognition (ALPR) and identify license plate 
information, including license plate type, alphanumeric characters, stacked characters, vanity 
plates and jurisdiction of origin, to be included in the lane transaction message. 

NCTA desires to select a sample of image transactions that have been reviewed and sent to the 
CBOS. The transactions should include: 

 The raw images captured at the lane, including the toll rate sign image, and the images 
selected to be sent to CBOS after image review.  

 All transaction details (transaction ID, classification, OCR, plate number, jurisdiction, 
plate type, transaction flags, lane mode, toll rate).    

 A video clip 15 seconds before and after the toll transaction of interest shall be captured 
of the transaction should also and be included, with the system log summary.  

NCTA describes to select a sample of image transactions that have been reviewed and rejected. 
These transactions shall include: 
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 Transaction details 
 Raw image captured at the lane  
 Video clip of the transaction 

NCTA describes to select samples based on date/time range, class, image review results 
(accepted or rejected), reject reason, system flag, system mode, jurisdiction, plate type, toll rate, 
toll zone, and lane number. 

11. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 5.3.3 RTCS System Security, Requirement 
338 has been modified as follows:  

338 The Contractor shall provide at their cost an annual information security risk assessment to be 
performed by a third-party approved by NCTA and in consultation with NCDOT IT security. 
The Contractor shall provide the assessment results to NCTA. 

The Contractor, and third parties supporting the RTCS Information Environment, shall provide 
at their own cost applicable third-party risk assessment reports to NCTA that demonstrate the 
Contractor’s compliance to industry accepted guidelines (e.g., SOC 2 Type II, ISO 27001, 
FedRAMP, PCI DSS, etc.) before the Contractor is permitted to handle Restricted and Highly 
Restricted NCTA data, and annually thereafter. The Contractor shall adhere to the Statewide 
Information Security Manual Risk Assessment Policy, Section RA-2; 
https://files.nc.gov/ncdit/documents/Statewide_Policies/SCIO_Risk_Assessment.pdf; 
https://it.nc.gov/documents/statewide-data-classification-and-handling-policy 

12. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 6.1 Maintenance Responsibilities and Services, 
Figure 2: Project Implementation Phases has been modified as follows:  

Sample Project Implementation and Maintenance Phases Timeline 

Project Implementation 
through Acceptance 

(Estimated: 12-24 
months for both 

Facilities) 

5-Year Base 
Maintenance 

Contract Period 

Maintenance Year 1 
through 

Maintenance Year 5 

3-Year Optional 
Maintenance Period 

Maintenance Year 6 
through 

Maintenance Year 8 

(1st Optional 
Maintenance Period) 

3-Year Optional 
Maintenance Period 

Maintenance Year 9 
through 

Maintenance Year 11 

(2nd Optional 
Maintenance Period) 

Contractor Responsible for 
All Maintenance Work and 

Costs prior to System 
Acceptance Go-Live. See 

Part IV, Terms and 
Conditions for Additional 

Details. 

Contractor Responsible for All Maintenance Work 
with Payment Based on Price Proposal. See Part IV, Terms, and 

Conditions for Additional Details. 

Figure 2: Project Implementation Phases 
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13. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 6.2 Roadway Maintenance Services – General 
Requirements, Requirement 480 has been modified as follows:  

480 If required by the Contractor, NCTA approved repair or other services that fall outside the 
Maintenance Services described herein shall be invoiced to NCTA as cost plus $250 per locate. 
If required by the Contractor, NCTA approved repair or other services that fall outside the 
Maintenance Services described herein shall be invoiced at the services as defined in Exhibit D-
7.   

14. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 7.1.1 Performance Measurement, Table 2: 
RTCS Performance Requirements has been modified as follows:  

12 Operations Image Verification 
Services - Transaction 
Accuracy 

The Contractor shall 
process image 
transactions to the 
existing Back Office 
within 120 hours after 
the transaction posts to 
the OBO. 

Monthly 1point for each 
percentage point 
where accuracy is 
less than 99.5% for 
each 0.1% or portion 
thereof below the 
Performance 
Requirement. 

132 Operations CBOS File 
Communications  

Received and Processed 
99.95% shall be processed 
within 2 hours and 100% 
shall be processed within 
24 hours. 

100% files and Updates 
per Requirements. 

Monthly 1 point for each 0.1% 
or portion thereof 
below the 
requirement 

143 Operations Wrong-Way Vehicle 
Detection and 
Notification 

Correctly detect all 
wrong-way vehicles and 
provide notifications and 
alerts per Requirements.  

Daily 1 point for each day 
a wrong-way vehicle 
is not accurately 
detected or properly 
reported 

154 Operations Maintenance MOT 
Notification and 
Approval by NCTA 

Provide NCTA and 
NCDOT staff with MOT 
schedules and MOT plans 
ahead of placement of 
lane closures for any type 
of maintenance. 

Monthly 1 point for each 
instance of a MOT 
that is placed without 
a documented 
notification to NCTA 
and NCDOT and 
prior Approval from 
NCTA 

165 Operations Maintenance MOT 
Setup 

All MOT of NCTA 
facilities shall be in 
accordance with NCDOT 
standards. 

Monthly 1 point for each 
instance of a MOT 
that is placed out of 
accordance with 
NCDOT standards 
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176 Response 
and Repair 

Time to Respond and 
Repair 

For Level III Maintenance 
required, all Work 
Orders shall be 
responded to and 
repaired within the 
response time applicable 
to the priority level. 

Monthly 1 point for each 
Work Order that 
fails to meet the 
applicable Response 
and Repair Time 

187 Response 
and Repair 

Acknowledgement of 
all priorities 

The Contractor shall 
acknowledge receipt of all 
priority events within 
thirty (30) minutes of 
failure/event notification.   

Monthly 1 point for each 
percentage point less 
than 95% of failure or 
priority events shall 
be acknowledged 
within thirty (30) 
minutes of receipt 

15. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 7.2.3 OBO Availability, Requirement 581 has 
been modified as follows:  

581 The OBO with all of its devices, Software, applications, and processes are properly functioning 
and available to the authorized users, successfully transmitting transactions to the existing 
NCTA CBOS systems and communicating with the in-lane systems 99.95% of the time excluding 
scheduled and approved maintenance. 

Availability shall be calculated based on the following calculation:  

Availability = 1- (chargeable downtime min / (minutes in period-exception min in period)) 

a) System reporting detailing the OBO availability along with ITSM and help desk tickets, 
work orders, and feedback from customers, CBOS staff, NCTA staff and consultants 
shall be utilized to identify availability failures. 

b) For any month in which all components of the OBO are not fully available and 
operational at least 99.95% of the time excluding scheduled and approved maintenance, 
Contractor shall be assessed 1.0 point for each 0.1% or portion thereof below the 
Performance Requirement. 

16. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 7.2.5 AVI Transaction Complete and Timely 
Transmission, Requirement 585 has been modified as follows:  

585 For any month in which 100 99.995% of the AVI transactions are not transmitted in accordance 
with the approved ICD to the CBOS, The Contractor shall be assessed 1.0 point for each 0.1% 
or portion thereof below the Performance Requirement. 

17. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 7.2.10 Image Verification Services – Rejection 
Accuracy, Requirement 595 has been modified as follows:  

595 For any month in which the image rejection accuracy falls below 998.5%, The Contractor shall 
be assessed 1.0 point for each 0.1% or portion thereof below the Performance Requirement. 
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18. Part III Scope of Work and Requirements, Section 7.2.11 Image Quality, Requirement 596 has 
been modified as follows:  

596 The RTCS shall provide images of sufficient image quality to achieve the Contractor’s desired 
automation rate and NCTA’s Requirements such that less than 0.51% of the images are rejected 
for reasons under the Contractor’s control.  Reject reasons not under the Contractor’s control 
are: 

a) the vehicle has no plate; 

b) the plate is not in the normal camera field of view because it is not mounted in 
accordance with State laws; 

c) the plate is covered by dirt, a trailer hitch, tailgate, or some other material such that 
the numbers/letters are not human-readable; or 

d) the plate is damaged so that numbers/letters are not human readable. 

19. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1 Contract Terms and Conditions subsection and sub-
subsection headings related to Damages have been modified as follows: 

a. Modified headings:  

1. Contract Terms and Conditions  
1.1 Payment Terms and Conditions 
1.2 Contract Terms 
1.3. Damages 

1.3.1 Liquidated Damages 
1.3.2 Actual Damages 
1.3.3 Risk of Loss  

b. Made changes throughout the RFP to match the updated headings noted above in 3.a., 
specifically:  

i. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.3 Liquidated Damages heading will be 
modified as follows:  

1.3 Damages 
1.3.1 Liquidated Damages 

ii. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.3.1 Actual Damages heading will be 
modified as follows: 

1.3.12 Actual Damages 

iii. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.3.2 Risk of Loss heading will be 
modified as follows: 

1.3.23 Risk of Loss 
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20. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.3.1 Liquidated Damages, item 1 has been modified as 
follows:  

1. Liquidated damages per Calendar Day shall be assessed for the Contractor’s failure to 
complete Commissioning of all lanes as further successfully complete the Factory 
Acceptance Test described in Part III, Scope of Work and Requirements by the 
Factory Acceptance Test milestone set forth in Exhibit A, Project Implementation 
Schedule or the first Toll Zone commissioning for revenue service during Site Installation 
Test milestone date set forth in Exhibit A, Project Implementation Schedule, subject 
to the limits set forth herein. The total and cumulative amount assessed by NCTA for 
liquidated damages under this provision shall not exceed the grand total cost for the 
Implementation Phase for each road as identified in Exhibit D-7 Price Proposal, Tab one 
(1) Project Summary, line six (6) Total Implementation Phase price, or as modified by any 
Change Orders or Extra Work Orders. The amounts reflect an estimate of impacts due to 
delays in open of toll traffic based on official traffic and revenue estimates. The liquidated 
damages per Calendar Day shall be $5,000. 

21. Part IV Terms and Conditions, Section 1.6.4 Service Warranties has been modified as follows:  

In the event NCTA determines that any Services do not conform to the foregoing warranty, 
NCTA shall be entitled to elect one of the following remedies: (i) reperformance of the Services 
by the Contractor until NCTA deems them to be in conformity with the warranty in this 
Section1.6.4, at no charge to NCTA; (ii) refund from the Contractor for all fees paid in 
connection with the Services, which NCTA deems were not as warranted, subject to the 
provisions of Part IV, Terms and Conditions, Section 1.3.1 Liquidated Damages, such that the 
Contractor is not required to refund fees for non-provision of Services for which Liquidated 
Damages have been assessed, (iii) reimbursement by the Contractor for NCTA’s costs and 
expenses incurred in having the Services re-performed by NCTA or someone other than the 
Contractor. 

22. Exhibit A Project Implementation Schedule has been modified as follows:  

Exhibit A - Project Implementation Schedule 

Major Milestone Description 
Projected 

Start 
Projected 

End 

Notice to Proceed Feb 2021 -- 
   

Project Kickoff Meeting Mar 2021 -- 
   

Project Planning Documentation 
(Project Schedule, Program Management Plan, Interface Test Plan, Master Test Plan) 

Mar 2021 Mar 2021 

   

System Design   

Requirements Review / Business Rules Workshops Mar 2021 Apr 2021 

Reports Design Workshops Mar 2021 Apr 2021 

System Detailed Design Review Jun 2021 Jul 2021 
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Exhibit A - Project Implementation Schedule 

Major Milestone Description 
Projected 

Start 
Projected 

End 

Bill of Materials Jun 2021 Jul 2021 

Third Party Hardware and Software Documentation Submitted Jun 2021 Jul 2021 

Draft System Detailed Design Document (SDDD) Approved Aug 2021 Sep 2021 

Final System Detailed Design Document (SDDD) Submitted Apr 2022 May 2022 

RTCS Installation Design and Documentation Package Approved May 2022 May 2022 

 

RTCS, Installation and Test   

Software Modifications from Baseline RSS and OBO  Jul 2021 

Factory Acceptance Test (FAT) Sep 2021 Sep 2021 

Final Installation Plan Approve Sep 2021 Sep 2021 

         Onsite Installation Test (OIT) Nov 2021 Dec 2021 

         NCTA CBO Interface Test Nov 2021 Dec 2021 

         Installation and Commissioning Test and Commissioning of first toll zone 
Approved 

 May 2022 

        Maintenance Plan and Training Plan Jan 2022 Feb 2022 

        Training Complete  Aug 2022 

         Installation of I-485 Express Lanes - First toll zone, and OBO and associated ITS 
Equipment. ITS Equipment shall be from the Gantry out to the nearest gantry on 
either side of the First Toll Site. 

May 2022 May 2022 

         Remaining Installations on I-485 Express Lanes -Second through Tenth Plaza Jun 2022 Sep 2022 

I-485 Express Lanes Go-Live Complete Sep 2022 Oct 2022 
   

Final Testing and Phase Closeout   

Formal Operational and Acceptance Testing and Start of Maintenance Nov 2022 Dec 2022 

As-Built System Detailed Design Document (SDDD) Approved Dec 2022 Dec 2022 

As-Built Drawing Package Approved Dec 2022 Dec 2022 

System Acceptance Test Jan 2023 Feb 2023 

23. Exhibit B Payment Schedule has been modified to show all milestones that equal 100% and make 
adjustments to the milestones as indicated in the responses. 

24. Exhibit C Price Proposal Instructions, Section 4 Completion of the RSS and ITS Cost Summary – 
Sheets 2, 2-1, 2-1a, item #1 has been modified as follows:  

1. Sheets 2-1. In the columns provided under each cost component (Items 1- 109), enter a 
description for each price element for each component in as much detail as space allows. 
Moving to the right in the 2nd column (B) enter the quantity for each item and in the 3rd 

column (C) enter the unit costs. If the item is provided as a lump sum, the quantity 
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should be shown as 1. Total item costs will be calculated automatically. Moving to the 
right, in the 5th column (E), enter the labor costs associated with each of the price 
elements. The costs for each price element will then automatically be calculated and the 
summary will be shown in the appropriate line item on Sheet 2.  

25. Exhibit D-6 Requirements Conformance Matrix, Sheet 2 Part III Requirements, Requirement 71 
has been removed.  

71      

For OIT and SIT, NCTA will provide interfaces that complete end-to-end testing 
scenarios during both tests. NCTA participation in the OIT and SIT end-to-end testing 
requires all elements of information from the FAT to be available in accordance with 
the Project Schedule. Any such deviation of this schedule or incomplete data may 
impact NCTA readiness of its interfaces during the OIT or SIT. (REQUIREMENT 
DELETED).  

26. Exhibit D-7 Price Proposal Form – Formulas, locked cells and additional lines were added to 
provide Proposers additional space to add equipment and other related items for specific sheets 
as indicated in the responses. 

27. Attachment 3: I-5507 Constructor Plans & Requirements, pdf page 9-11 of 777 – The yellow 
markings have been removed.  

28. Attachment 7: Use Cases has been modified as follows:  
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